CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008



(This page intentionally left blank)



CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

Prepared by:

Finance Department



{(This page intentionally left blank)



CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTORY SECTION

Letter of Transmittal
Directory of City Officials

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditors' Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
Basic Financial Statements:
Government- Wide Fimancial Statements:
Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements:
Governmental Fund Financial Statements:

Balance Sheet
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the Government-Wide
Statement of Activities

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements:
Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Statement of Cash Flows

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements:
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

L:j
[=¥]
[4°]

vii

[

17
18

20
22
24
26

27
29
30
31
32



CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

TABLE OF CONTENTS, (CONTINUED)

Required Supplementary Information:
Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Budgetary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Section 8 Housing Assistance
Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule — Other Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Nutrition Program Special Revenue Fund
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Sewer Service Special Revenue Fund

Supplementary Information:
Non-Major Governmental Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances —
Budget and Actual
Internal Service Funds:
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Fiduciary Funds:

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agency Funds

OTHER INFORMATION

Net Assets by Component

Changes in Net Assets

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Net Taxable Assessed Value History

Assessed Value of Taxable Property

};:
£
o

69

78
82

85-102

104
106
108

113

116
118
122
124
126
127



CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

For the Year Ended June 30, 2008

TABLE OF CONTENTS, (CONTINUED)

OTHER INFORMATION, (CONTINUED)

Direct & Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Property Tax Dollar Breakdown

2007/08 Top Ten Property Taxpayers
1998/99 Top Ten Property Taxpayers
Taxable Sales by Category

Pledged Revenue Coverage

City Overview - Planning Department
Capital Assets by Function

128
129
130
131
13

133
134
139



_ a,w ';c:A'}i; FOR N f:"f;;‘;j.i%}w_ysg:; -
NATIONAE

March 31, 2009

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council
And the Citizens of the City of National City:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of National Gity for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2008 is hereby submitted in accordance with Title 2.16.100(N) of the
National City Municipal Code and section 25253 of the Government Code of the State of
Caijifornia. The City is responsible for the accuracy, completeness, and fair presentation of
this report. Under the direction of the City's Director of Finance our financial reports are
prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) as
promuigated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). To the best of our
knowledge and belief, the enclosed data are accurate in all material respects and are
reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial position and results of
operations of the various Funds, account groups and component units of the Cily. it is
helieved that all disclosures necessary have heen included in order to enable the reader to
gain maximum understanding of the City's financial affairs as of June 30, 2008.

As required by the City of National City Municipal Code, Title 2.16.100(N), the independent
auditing firm Mayer Hoffman McCann, P.C. has reviewed the City's financial records and the
internal controi system. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonabie
assurance that the financial statements of the City of National City for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2008, are free of materiai misstatements. The audit firm of Mayer Hoffman
McCann, P.C., has issued an unqualified opinion on the City of Nationai City's financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2008. The independent auditor's report is located
at the front of the financial section of this report.

The Report is organized into three major sections:

Introductory Section: This section includes a table of contents, this transmittal
letter and a City organizational chart.

Financiat Section: This section includes the independent auditors’ repori,
the management discussion and analysis report, the
basic financial statements and the notes to these
financial statements, followed by supplemental
information.

Statistical Section: This section contains both financial and non-financial
trend data about the City and its operations.



In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in the City's Municipal Code, the City is
reqguired to have a Single Audit performed by our independent audit firm. The Single Audit
was designed to meet the needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing
Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair
presentation of the financial statements, but also on the City’'s internal controls and
compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and
compliance with legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards. These
reports are available in the City of National City’s separately issued Single Audit Report.

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles requires that management provide a narrative
introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form
of a Management Discussion and Anaiysis (MD&A). This transmittal fetter is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of National City’s
MD& A is tocated in the Financial Section, foliowing the independent auditor’'s report.

GOVERNMENT

The City of National City is located on the bay in San Diego County, bordered by the City of
San Diego to the north, and the port of San Diego to the west. The nearly built-out city is
home to a fairly constant population of about 61,115 residents over 9.2 sguare miles.

The City of National City was incorporated September 17, 1887. It is a general law city and
operates under the council-manager form of governmeni. The City Council has five
members who are elected at large for a term of four years. The citizens of National City also
elect the City Treasurer and the City Clerk.

The City Council is responsible for setting policies, passing ordinances, adopting the budget,
appointing committees and appointing the City Manager. The City Manager is responsible
for carrying out policies and ordinances of the City Council, appointing City Department
heads and overseeing the day-to-day operations of the City. The City Manager also serves as
executive director and secretary of the Community Development Commission of the City of
National City and may delegate that authority.

REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes all funds of the City, as well as all of its component units. Component
units are legally separate entities for which the City is financially accountable.

Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the
City's operations and are included in this CAFR as part of the City. Accordingly, the City of
National City Joint Powers Financing Authority, the National City Parking Authority and the
Community Development Commission of the City of National City are reported as part of
the City. Discreiely presenied component uniis are reporied in a separaie column in the
combined financia! statements to emphasize that they are legally separate from the City
and to differentiate their financial position, results of operations and cash flows from those
of the City.



BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS

The City Council and City Manager are committed to the support of government programs
that can expand the City's ability o reach-out to the community. The National City
Neighborhood Councils were implemented in 2005 and has greatly enhanced the citizen
interaction with the City Services. The following boards and commissions are available for
the citizens of National City to participate on as advisors to the Mayor and City Council:

e Building and Advisory and Appeals Board - acts in matters related to the Building Code.

e Civil Service Commission - recommends hears appeals of any person in the classified
service relative to any suspension, demotion or dismissal.

e Community and Police Relations Commission - a forum for citizens to voice their
concerns about issues related to police-community relations.

e Housing and Community Development Committee - members stay in touch with
community attitudes, and identify the physical, social, and economic needs of National
City.

+ library Board of Trustees - acts in accordance with the Education Code; coordinates the
activities of the City Library; advises the City Librarian on operational policies; approves
watrants; and recommends to the City Council the adoption of rules and regulations.

e Parks and Recreation Advisory Board - acts in matters of policy and administration of the
city owned parks and the recreation programs operated in said parks.

e Planning Commission - recommends the adoption, amendment, or repeal of a master
pian or any part thereof for the physical development of the City.

s Public Art Committee - advises the City Council on public art projects meant to increase
the aesthetic value of parks, public buildings, and new development. The commitiee
also promotes the City's substantial historical and cultural assets throughout the county.

e Senior Citizens Advisory Board - acts in an advisory capacity in matters pertaining 1o
seniors.

e Street Tree and Parkway Committee - reviews and makes recommendations relative to
the planting, removal, or transplanting of trees upon public property.

e Traffic Safety Committee - reviews and makes recommendations concerning the safety
of traffic.

i}



FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

The City’s largest revenue stream, Sales Tax, has experienced significant declines over the
past years. In 2004, the sales tax revenue was over $16 million and now, in 2008, is g little
under $12 miltion. With this shortage, the City has done its part in enhancing its revenues
and containing costs. Through the years, the City has received grants totaling over $14
million, has enhanced the City's quality of fife through investments in street resurfacing
projects, safe routes to school projects, the Paradise Creek Educational Park as well as
other community and cultural everts. City staff has contained costs through savings in
saiaries, monitoring overall departmental and capital improvement program expenditures.

In June 6, 2006, voters approved Proposition D (District Tax), a 1% increase in local sales
tax, which is effective for 10 years. Implementation of the district tax began on Cctober 1,
2006 and has generated a cumulative total of 14.5 million in additional sales tax revenue.
The City has repaid the General Fund Reserve that had been used to restore those services
which had been previously cut. In November 2008, the District Tax was challenged to be
overturned through Proposition M. Through the vote, the district {tax was not repealed and
the tax will remain in effect until 2016. The District Tax has been projected t0 generaie
approximately $7 to $9 miilion in revenues and is on target to continue at that rate.

Several Council and Administrative actions were {aken to assist in balancing the budget,
attain fiscal sustainability, and provide for efficient and fransparent government, An
employee-driven committee was established to brainstorm ideas to reduce internal costs.
The Cost Reduction and Revenue Efficiency (C.A.R.E.) Committee publishes quarterly
newsletters 1o encourage voluntary patrticipation in such endeavors. The Purchasing Review
and Personnel Review Committees were established to affirm fiscal responsibility in
purchasing and hiring practices.

in 2006, the Community Development Commission was consolidated with other City
departments and was re-organized to report to the City Manager. in 2008, a Housing and
Grants Division was established to oversee and coordinate all grants within the City and the
Planning and Building and Safety Departments were consolidated under a Neighborhood
Services Department. These organizational changes were completed to better serve the
community, enhance services and create efficiencies within the City structure.

BUDGETARY CONTROLS

The City maintains budgetary controis at the individual fund level. The objective of these
budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in the annual
appropriated budget approved by the City Council. The budget includes estimated revenues
and appropriations for the City's funds categorized into six fund types including one general
fund, specia! revenue funds, debt service funds, capital projects funds, enterprise funds and
all internat service funds are included in the annual appropriated budgets of the City.

Using the City’s automated accounting system, each City department’s expenditures are
restricted to the amount of that department’s budgeted appropriations for the year at the
ohject level. No department is allowed 1o spend more than its available appropriations,



Changes in appropriations in excess of a department’s total appropriation or fund balance or
untrealized revenues must be approved by the City Council as a transfer from contingency
reserve, fransfer from ancther department, or as an appropriation of unanticipated or over-
realized revenue identified to a specific source. There is no “fioor” in the fevel amount
requiring approval.

CASH MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES

The investment operations of the City are under the direction of the City Finance Director.
The City Treasurer and the Finance Director share investment policy review, operations and
approval. On an annual basis, the City's investment policy is reviewed and approved by the
City Council. The Finance Director and Financial Services Officer monitor cash balances
daily and invest temporarily idie funds in accordance with the California Government Code
and the City's Investment Policy. The City employs a pooled cash system for various City
funds to maximize interest income. Investment earnings are distributed based on average
cash balance. During Fiscal Year 2007-2008, the City invested funds in the State of
California Local Agency Investment Fund, certificates of deposit, money market and federal
agency bonds.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is self-insured for its general liability exposures up to $250,000 per occurrence and
for its Workers' Compensation up to $500,000 per claim. As a member of the San Diego
Pooled Insurance Program Authority (SANDPIPA), the City is insured for general liability
between $250,000 and $2 million. For general liability claims in excess of the pooled layer,
the City purchases excess liability insurance through SANDPIPA with limits up to $37 million
per occurrence. The City also obtains its first party, allrisk property insurance and crime
bond/fidelity coverage through SANDPIPA. In addition, the City participates in the County
Supervisors' Association of California Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC-EIA) which enables it
to purchase excess Workers' Compensation coverage for its large and catastrophic claims.

MAJOR ACCOMPLISHMENTS

e Highland Avenue Streetscape Project - Construction was completed on Phase |, between
8th Street and 16th Street.

s National City Boulevard Streetscape Project - Construction was completed on Phase |l
between 7th Street and 12th Street. The project included sidewalks, curbs, gutlers,
medians, decorative pedestrian ramps, electrical and landscape improvements.

+ National City Street Resurfacing Project - Slurry seal and resurfacing of various city
streets totaling $8 million. The project included asphalt-rubber and aggregate
mermbrance pavement, leveling course, concrete work and sturry seal resurfacing.



s Safe Routes to School Project - [n general, the project included installation of reflective
signage, flashing beacons, school crossing signs, in-roadway crosswaiks, striping and
pavement markings,

s Paradise Creek Educational Park - Construction was completed and includes a view
pavilion, walking paths, interpretive elements, and native landscaping. Design and
implementation included a joint partnership with the community and Kimball School.

+ Paramedic Program - The City developed a plan to implement & paramedic program 1o
improve pre-hospital medical care, which began on January 3, 2008.

e Strategic Plan - The City developed and adopted a Strategic Plan after holding three
public workshops to facilitate public participation and receive community input. The
Strategic Plan establishes goals and objectives to be achieved through the
implementation of key plans, programs, and projects that were identified during the
planning process. :
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To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of National City, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City of National City, Califormia (City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2008, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, as listed i the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City as of June 30, 2008, and
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

The information identified in the accompanying table of contents as management's discussion
and analysis and required supplementary information are not a required part of the basic
financial statements but are supplementary information required by accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement
and presentation of the supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information
and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining
financial statements, individual nonmajor budgetary comparison schedules and other information
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The combining financial statements and individual nonmajor fund budgetary
comparison schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and other
information have not been subjected to the auditing



To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
of the City of National City, California
Page Two

procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no
opinion on them.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated March
31, 2009 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements,
and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

/%z’:‘éf;bmm /J"'d .

Irvine, California
March 31, 2009
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As management of the City of National City, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements
this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of National City for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. We encourage readers to consider the information presented
here in conjunction with additional information that has been furnished in the letter of
fransmittal, which can be found in the introductory section of this report.

e The City’s assets exceeded its liabilities at the close of fiscal year 2008 by $158,435,271 (net
assets). Of this amount, $7,376,407 (unrestricted net assets) is for unrestricted uses in
accordance with finance-related legal requirements reflected in the City’s fund structure.

¢ The City’s total net assets increased by $6,200,827 or 4.1%. Net assets of governmental
activities increased by $10,805,325 and net assets of business type activities decreased by
$4,604.,498.

e As of the close of fiscal year 2008, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $87,961,844, an increase of $10.381,419 or 13.4%. Total fund balance is
broken-up as follows:

BALANCE SHEET
Governmental Funds

ved $62,275,91

e At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved/undesignated fund balance for the General
Fund was $6,874,602 or 20 percent of total general fund expenditures. An increase of
$212,056 in comparison with the prior year.

¢ The City’s total long-term debt had a net decrease of $2,162,567 or 3 percent during fiscal
year 2008.

« In 2006, the citizens of National City voted to implement a 1% district tax which will sunset
in 2016. It was estimated that the district tax would provide additional revenues of $7 to $9
million per fiscal year. In fiscal year 2008, the district tax brought in $8.5 million.
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This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of National City’s
basic financial statements. The City of National City’s basic financial statements are comprised
of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and
3) notes to the basic financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements, also
provided is other supplementary information. (Refer to figure A-1)

Governmeni-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial siatements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the City of National City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net assets (the “Unrestricted .
Figure A-1

Net Assets”) is similar to a bottom line for the Requlred Components of
City and its governmental and business-type City of National City’s Annual Financial Report
activities. This statement reports all of the o e e e e e .
governmental  fund’s  current  financial ! - AL -
resources (short-term spendable resources) o

; i . . Management's Basic Financial Required
with capital assets and long-term obligations. Disctussion and Statements Supplementary
Over time, increases or decreases in net assets Analysis Information
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the City of National City // ~
. . . . . - / \
is improving or deteriorating. y N

Ve \\
7 ~
The Statement of Activities  presents
information to show how the government’s
net assets changed during the most recent Government- otes to the
: ) wide Financial Fund Finanetal i .. .

fiscal year. All changes in net assets are Statements Statements || Financial Statements
reported as soon as the underlying event

giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reporfed in this
statement for some items that will only result Summary <———>>  Deti
in cash flows in future fiscal periods (c.g.,

uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave and sick leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish services of the City of National
City that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their
costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the
City of National City include general government, public safety, transportation, health, culture
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and leisure, and community development. The business-type activities of the City of National
City include the community development commission.

The basic government-wide financial statements can be found in the accompanying
comprehensive financial report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City of National City uses fund accounting
to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Al of the funds
used by the City of National City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Governmental fund
financial statements focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as
on the balances left at year end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental
fund financial statements provide a detailed short-term view that helps the reader determine
whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance
the City’s programs. Because this information does not encompass the long-term focus of the
government-wide statement, additional information is provided that reconciles the governmental
fund financial statements to the government-wide statements explaining the relationship (or
differences) between them.

The City maintains 149 individual governmental funds, which includes 11 funds maintained by
the Community Development Commission. Information is presented separately in the
government fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues’
expenditures and changes in fund balance for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital
Project Funds, each of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the remaining not
mentioned funds are combined into a single aggregate presentation. Individual fund data for
these major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in
this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its Funds. A budgetary comparison statement
has been provided to demonstrate compliance with this budget. Except for the Community
Development Commission funds, the City maintains an automated budgetary accounting system
to restrict expenditures to established appropriations and to recognize yearend commitments
(encumbrances) in the financial statements.



bt HCHRPORATED -

Proprietary Funds. The City of National City maintains two different types of proprietary funds:
enterprise funds and internal service funds. Ewnterprise funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
City uses enterprise funds to account for the Kimball Towers and Morgan Towers. Internal
Service Fund is an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among the
City’s various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for its vehicle
operations, workers compensation insurance, general liability insurance, separation benefits,
accounting services and technology development. The internal service funds predominantly
benefit governmental rather than business-type functions; therefore they have been included
within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial
statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate
information for the Kimball Towers and Morgan Towers, each of which are considered to be
major funds of the City of National City. Date for the additional enterprise funds and all of the
internal service funds are combined into their respective single aggregated presentations.
Individual fund data for the non-major enterprise funds and all internal service funds is provided
in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

Fiduciary Funds. The City uses fiduciary funds to account for assets held on behalf of outside
parties. The City of National City’s fiduciary funds reflect activity related to retiree medical and
dental insurance premiums and refundable customer deposits for performance. Fiduciary funds
are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of those funds
are not available to support the City’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is
much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes {o the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.
The notes to the basic financial statements can be found in the financial section of this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents
certain required supplementary information concerning the City of National City’s progress in
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required supplementary
information can be found in the financial section of this report.
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The combining statements referred to earlter in connection with non-major governmental funds
and internal service funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary
information.

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial
position. In the case of the City of National City, assets exceeded liabilities by $158,435,271 at
the close of the most recent fiscal year.

A portion of the City’s net assets $7,376,407 (4.8%) is unrestricted and may be used to meet the
City’s ongoing f{inancial obligations. These are net assets that are not restricted by external
requirements nor invested in capital.

Of the City’s $158,435,271 in net assets, $123,615,284 (60%) reflects investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment). The City of National City uses these
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are nol available for
future spending. Although the City of National City’s investment in its capital assets is reported
net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities. Net assets of the City also include $55,078,752 of restricted net assets. These are
assets representing resources subject to external restriction as to how they may be used by the
City.

The following reflects the City of National City’s net assets:

Goverpmental Bushiress-type Total Primary

Current and other assets § 108905722 §F 101785338 % 198738 § 2,138,229 % 11104460 § 103.923367
Capital assets 115,177,024 117,953,832 8,438,260 13,429,521 123615284 131,383 453
Total assets 224,082,746 219,739,270 10,636,998 15,567,750 234,719,744 235,307,020
Long-term labilities outstanding 66,502 001 (8,495,982 2853463 3,022,049 69,355,404 71,518,031
Other Habilities 6,727,072 9.460,232 201937 339,608 6,929,009 5,819 837
Total Habilities 73,225,073 77,956,214 3,055,400 3,381,654 76,284 473 81,337 868
Net assefs:
Invested in capital assets, net

of related debt G0,395 315 85 083,039 5584 757 10,407,472 95,980,112 105,450,511
Restricted 53,081,951 41,250,048 1,596,801 1,778,624 55,078,752 43,028,672
Unrestricted 7,376,407 5,449 969 - 7,376,407 5,449,969
Total net assets § 150853673 § 141783056 7,581,598 §12,186,096  § 158435271 § 153969152
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At the end of the 2008 fiscal year, the City of National City is able to report positive balances in
all three categories of net assets for the government as a whole and the separate governmental
and business-type activities.

The following reflects the City of National City’s Changes in Net Assets:

Governmental Business-type Total Primary
e Ativities o Adtivities L Gevernment
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 012366305 % 12896049 0§ 2044277 0§ 2,846,533 14,410,582 § 15,742,582
Operating grants and contributions 26,090,615 23,016,167 - 890,340 26,000,615 24,006,507
Capital grants and contributions 12,107 166,994 - 112,107 166,994
General Revenue:
Property tax 16,421,961 15232910 - - 16,421 961 15,232.910
Sales and Use tax 24,072,743 22,112,515 - 24,072,743 22,102,515
Franchise tax 1,416,236 1,440,770 - - 1,416,236 1,440,770
Other taxes 5,942 144 5,745,864 - 5,942,144 5,745 864
Investment earnings 3,369,224 3,405,789 27618 82,069 3,396,842 3487838
Rent 305,082 85,527 - 365,082 85,527
Transters 2378514 - {2,378 9103 - - .
Total Revenues 92,475,327 84,092,585 (307,015 31918,942 92,168,312 88,011,527
Expenses:
General government 5,881,015 5,219,116 - - 5,881,013 5,219,116
Public safety 27218309 25,943,803 - 27,218,309 25,543,803
Transportation 7,144 911 2,680,880 - . 7,144 911 2,680,880
Comnwnity development 24,841,387 22,208,522 - - 24 841 387 22,209,522
Health 7.426,569 6,273,178 - 7,426,564 6,273,178
Culture and leisure 6,304,412 6,387,197 - - 6,304,412 6,387,197
Interest and f{iscal charges 2,853,399 2,768,004 - 2,853,399 2,768,004
TDA - 2,218,661 2,689,687 2,218,661 2,689,687
Commaunity Development Commission - 2,078 822 2,059,738 2078822 2,039,738
Tetal Expenses 81,670,002 1481700 4297483 4,749,425 85,967 485 76,231,125
Increase {decrease) in net assets
hefore transfers 10,805,325 12,610,885 (4,604,498%) (830,483) 6,200,827 11,780,402
Transters (27.714) .- 7714 -
Increase {decrease) in net assets 10,805,325 12,583,171 (4,604,498} (R02,769) 6,200,827 11,780,402
Net assets - Beginning of Year (note 11} 140,048,348 124,199 885 12,186,696 12,988 865 152,234 444 142 188,750
Net assets - End of Year § 156853673 % 141783036 & TS5RIS9R 0§ 12,186,006 158435271 § 153065152

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the City of National City’s net assets by $10,805,325 causing
a 7 percent increase in the primary government’s net assets. Key elements of this increase are as
follows:
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¢ Tax revenue increased by $3,331,025 or 7.5 percent increase from fiscal year 2007. This
change was primarily a result from increases in sales taxes ($1,970,228), property taxes
($1,189,051) and motor vehicle in lieu ($262,722). Despite the nation-wide resection the City
of National City was able to maintain fiscal sustainability during the fiscal yvear 2008 through
the passing of Prop. D, which implemented a 1% district tax rate.

¢ Total program revenue for governmental activities increased by $2,489,817 or 7 percent from
fiscal year 2007. This change was mainly attributed to the increase in revenue from operating
grants and contributions of $3,074,448.

Program Expenses - Governmental Activities

Interest and fiscal
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Intergovernmental revenues are grants and other revenues received from the state and federal
government. Licenses and permits include amounts collected from the issuance of licenses and
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permits required by the City of National City for various purposes. Revenues from fees collected
by the City for a variety of services provided to the public are recorded as charges for services.
Investment income reflects revenue from investment activity. Other revenue includes rent
proceeds from the leasing of various government buildings.

Revenue By Seurce - Governmental Activities

Operating Property Taxes
(Grants EEEEA ) 19%
29%

Motor vehicle in-
fieu
5%

Sales and Use
Charges for

Taxes
Services '
27%
149 Motor vehicleFranchise Taxes °
in-lieu 29,
4%

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities had an immaterial impact on net assets. The National City transit
program is no longer managed by the City of National City and is now operated by Metropolitan
Transit System (MTS). The City’s only current business type activity is the community
development commission.

As noted earlier, the City of National City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on current vear revenue,
expenditures, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the
City of National City’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year.

Governmental Funds report the difference between their assets and liabilities as fund balance,
which 18 divided mto reserved and unreserved portions. The function of reserved fund balance is
simply to 1solate the portion of fund balance that is unavailable for the following period’s budget.
The unreserved fund balance can serve as a measure of cwrrent available financial resources.

10
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City Council may commit a portion of the unreserved fund balance by designation of fund
balance to an intended future use.

As of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008, the City of National City’s governmental funds
reported combined ending fund balances of $87,961,844, an increase of $10,381,419 in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 71 percent of the total fund balance amount, or
$62,275,915, constitutes unreserved fund balance, $22,256,224 of this has been designated for
specific purposes by City Council. The remainder of fund balance is reserved to indicate that it
is not available for new spending because it has already been committed 1) to liquidate contracts
and purchase orders of the prior period ($2,278,611), 2) to pay debt service (34,696,770), 3) for
land held for resale ($10,995,136), 4) for a variety of other purposes ($7,715,412).

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. For the fiscal year ended June 30,
2008, unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $18,298,540 while total fund balance
was $20,026,232. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare
both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund
balance represents 53 percent of total General Fund expenditures, while total fund balance
represents 58 percent of the same amount.

The total fund balance of the City’s General Fund increased by $2,478,732 or 14.1 percent,
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008. Restated fund balance was $17.547,500. Key factors
in this increase are as follows:

¢ The Change in fund balance of the General Fund, from an increase of $4,293,947 for fiscal
year 2007 to an increase of $2,478,732 for fiscal 2008, represents an overall change of
approximately $1.8 million.

¢ Revenue from taxes increased by $2.3 million or 7.2 percent from the prior year. This
increase is mainly attributed to the passing of Proposition D, which implemented one cent
district tax. In more detail, the change in tax revenue is comprised of increases in: sales
taxes of $1,970,228 or 8.9 percent, property taxes of $1,189,051 or 7.8 percent and motor
vehicle in lieu of $262,722 or 5.4 percent.

¢ Interest and Rent Revenue increased $112,865 or 5.5 percent from the prior year. This
increase is mainly attributed to the increase in interest revenue. The increase in tax revenue
has continued to increase in the City’s cash flow allowing more opportunity to invest.

11
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¢ Revenue from fines and forfeitures increased $301,591 or 38.5 percent. This increase is
partially attributed to the adoption of a revised fee schedule, which became in affect
September 15, 2008.

The Section 8 Housing Assistance Fund has a fund balance of $1,155,443, which is an increase
of $1.348,076 from the prior year deficit of ($192,633). The key factors contributing to this
increase are as follows:

¢ Total revenues increased $1,233,771 or 15 percent, whereas total expenditures decreased
$53,662 or .6 percent.

¢ Intergovernmental revenues increased $1,222,537 or 14.9 percent. This was mainly attributed
to the end of year settlement of $582,582.02 which was received by the City during the fiscal
year 2008. Interest and rent revenue was not produced this year. However $41,269 of the
funds revenue was attributed from other revenue sources.

The Sewer Service Fund has an ending fund balance of $13,820,961, of which $218.640 is
reserved for encumbrances. This year’s net increase in fund balance was $131.487,
approximately $1 million less than last year’s net increase. The change can be attributed to the
increase in total expenditures of §1,143,069 or 19 percent. The increase in expenditure is due to
the City's capital project activity increase in FY07/08. Capital projects such as Upsizing of
Sewer for $2,260,000 and 22nd Street Sewer Replacement for $1,067,000 are both funded by the
Sewer Service Fund.

The Community Development Commission Debt Service Fund has a total fund balance of
$2,613.954. For the year ended June 30, 2008 $814.215 was fransferred in from other
governmental funds to provide funding to cover debt service payments made during the fiscal
year that related to low and moderate development. A total of $8,915,568 was transferred to the
redevelopment fund in order to provide funding for future capital project expenditures. The net
change in fund balance during the current year in the debt service fund is ($2,499,534) or 49%
percent decrease from the prior year restated fund balance of $5,113.488.

Proprietary Funds

The City of National City’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the

government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.
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Total net assets for the Kimball Towers, and Morgan Towers Funds amounted to $6,492,902 and
$1,088,696; respectively. The total net income (loss) for each fund before transfers was
($37,471) and $30,544; respectively.

Kimball Towers and Morgan Towers Funds account for activities relating to the operations of
Kimball and Morgan Towers, which provide housing to low and moderate income seniors. For
the year ended June 30, 2008 total operating revenue for Kimball Towers and Morgan Towers
amounted to $923,151 and $1,121,126; respectively. Kimball Towers operating expenses
decreased by $11,752 or 1 percent from the prior year, while Morgan Towers operating expenses
increased by $41,417 or 6 percent from the prior year.

Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the
discussion of the City of National City’s business-type activities.

Differences between the General Fund original budget and the final amended budget include
significant changes in the revenue and expenditure amounts.

Original revenue estimates for the fiscal year 2007-08 were based on a predicted economical
recession. Actual total General Fund revenues exceeded the final budgets estimated amount by
$632,596. The variance between actual and estimated revenue is mainly attributed to actual
revenue produced by taxes. The passing of Proposition D, which implemented one cent district
tax, provided additional revenue in overall sales tax. The district tax which became effective on
October 1, 2006 provided revenue for all 4 quarters in FY07/08 compared to only 3 quarters in
FY06/07. Taxes produced revenue of $560,832 or 2 percent higher than anticipated. Interest
and rent revenue was also under estimated, with actual revenue of $335,903 or 18 percent higher
than anticipated. The increase in interest revenue is a rippling effect caused by the increase in
tax revenue which increased the City’s cash flow and allowed the City more opportunities to
invest mn various bonds and CD’s. The largest negative variance occurred in the estimated
revenue of Intergovernmental which actual revenue was $178,792 less than budget estimated.

The General Fund actual total expenditures did not exceed final budgeted appropriations. The
variance between actual total expenditures and the final appropriation was $4.5 million or 12
percent. The only negative variance occurred in the community development expenditures which
exceeded the final budget by $13,762.

13
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Ending Fund Balance exceeded the final budget estimated ending fund balance by $5,157,877 or
34.7 percent. General Fund actual end of year fund balance was $ 20,026,232,

Capital Assets

The City’s capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of June 30, 2008,
amounted to $123,615,284 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets
includes land, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment and infrastructure
(including streets, alleys, traffic signals and signs and bridges) of governmental activities.
Infrastructure type assets of business-type activities are reported as buildings and improvements.

The City’s capital assets by activity at June 30, 2008 were as follows:

Governmental Business-type Total Primary

e NOEVIOES At Government
Land § 20025598 0§ 19425598 % 528382 0§ 1428382 0§ 20353980 % 2055198
Right of way 4,245,088 4,245,088 - - 4,245,088 4,245,088
Construction i progress - - . . .
Buildings and improvements 44,343,967 44,491,598 15,636,107 17,629,514 59,980,074 62,121,112
Machinery and equipment 11,910,726 10,913,827 462,153 5,453,044 12,372,879 16,367 471
Infrastructure 105,326,920 105,421,395 - - 104,526,920 105,421,593
Less acoumulated depreciation 70,875,275 66,243,774 8,188,382 11,682,619 79,063,657 77325793
Total § 115177024 5 117953932 § 84387200 § 13429521 S 123615284 % 131383433

Major capital asset activity during the year ended June 30, 2008 includes the following:

s Purchase of new vehicles, a new motorcycle and equipment for the National City Police
department - $174,063.

¢ Purchase of new computer equipment and other electronics for the National City Public
Library - $439,894.

* Purchase of various City office equipment - $116,210.
¢ Sidewalk pavement of 9,977 square feet - $134,594.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in the financial section of this
report (Note 5).

14
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Long-Term Debt

At year-end the City had a total long-term debt of $69.355,464, a decrease of $2,162,567 from
the prior year. These include $3,920,000 of Lease revenue refunding bonds issued by National
City Joint Powers Financing Authority (NCJPFA) and $41,820.,000 of tax allocation bonds
applicable to Community Development Commission. The City of National City’s general
obligation bond is rated A- by Standard & Poor’s rating agency.

Governmental Business-type Totat Primary
e Activities o Activities 0 Government

OS2 2082007 a8y
NCIPFA:

{zase Revenue Refunding Bonds § 3920000 % 4220000 § -8 -5 3820000 0§ 4220000
Community Development Commision:

1999 Tax Allocation Bonds 4,325 4600 4 435,000 - - 4,325,000 4.435,000

2004 Tax Allocation Bonds 5,145,000 5,395,000 - - 5,145,000 5,395,000

2003 Series A and B

Tax Alfocation Bonds 32,350,000 34,055,000 . - 32,350,000 34,055,000

General Obligation Bonds 5,585,000 5,720,000 - - 3,385,000 5,720,000

HUD 108 Bond 2003 A 6,185,000 6,380,000 - - 6,185,000 6,380,000

Total Bonds

Claims Payabie 4,308,600 4,145 600 - - 4,508,000 4,145 066
Compensated Absences 3,111,061 2,490,655 - - 3,111,061 2,490,655
Capitalized Lease Obligations 1,372,940 1,655,327 - - 1,372,940 1,653,327
Notes Payable . . 2,853,463 3,022,045 2,853 463 3,622,049

Total § 66502001 § 68405982 5 2853463 % 3022049 § 69355464 § 7151803

Additional information on the City of National City’s long-term debt can be in the financial
section of this report (Note 7).

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of National City’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of
the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the office of the Director of Finance, 1243 National City Boulevard, National City,
California, 91950-4397.
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Assets
Current assets:
Cash and investments (note 2)
Accounts receivable
Property tax receivable
Interest receivable
Short-term internal balances (note 3)
Due from other governmental entities

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:

CITY OF NATIONAL CITY

Statement of Net Assets

Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agents (notc 2)

inventories
Prepaid items and deposits
l.and held for resale

Contracts, notes and loans receivable (note 4)

Subtotal
Capital assets (note 5)
Non-depreciable
Depreciable, net
Total capital assets
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

Liabilities
Cusrent liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Interest payable
Salaries pavable
Deposits payable
Due to other governmental entities
Unearned revenue
Total current liabilities
Long-term liabilities (note 7
Due within one year
Due bevond one year

Total noncurrent Liabilities
Total liabilities

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:
Community development
Pubtic Safety
Transportation
Culture and leisure
Health
Housing
Total restricted
Unrestricied
Total net assets

See socompanying notes o the basic financial statements.

fune 30, 2008
_ Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 75,909,673 233,033 76,142,706
2,197,512 1,392 2,198,904
84,135 - 84,135
854,789 - 854,789
6,840,528 - 6,840,528
85,886,637 234,425 86,121,062
4,233,634 1,804,906 6,038,540
27,903 - 27,903
50,386 159,407 209,793
10,995,136 - 10,993,136
7,712,026 - 7,712,026
23,016,085 1,964,313 24,983,398
24,270,686 528,382 24,799,068
90,906,338 7,909,878 98,810,216
115,177,024 8,438,260 123,615,284
138,196,109 10,452,573 148,598,682
224,082 746 10,636,998 234719744
2,871,934 115,607 2,987,541
433,382 - 433,382
1,434,761 - 1,434,761
361,582 86,330 447,912
689,118 - 689,118
936,295 - 836,295
6,727,672 201,937 6.529.00%
6,797,588 179,857 6,977,445
39,704,413 2,673,606 62,378,019
66,502,001 2,853,463 69,355,464
73,229,073 3,055,400 76,284,473
90,353,315 5,584,797 95,980,112
41,864,051 - 41,864,051
1.663,522 - 1,603,522
6,801,568 - 6,801,568
1,699,532 - 1,099,532
1,713,278 - 1,713,278
- 1,996,801 1,956,801
53,081,951 1,966,801 35,078,752
7,376,407 - 7,376,407
$ 150,853,673 7,581,598 158,435,271
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Primary Government:
Governmental activities:

General government
Public safety
Transportation
Community development
Health
Culture and leisure
Interest and fiscal charges

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
TDA
Community development commission

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

CITY OF NATIONAL CITY

Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Total
Charges for (rants and Grants and Program
Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Revenue
§ 5,881,015 3,035,893 - - 3,035,893
27,218,309 192,291 8,717,780 - 8,810,071
7,144,911 - 1,783,728 - 1,783,728
24,841,387 776,094 15,078,303 112,107 15,966,504
7,426,569 7,426,730 510,804 - 7,937,534
6,304,412 935,297 - - 935,297
2,853,399 - - - -
81,670,002 12,366,305 26,090,615 112,167 38,569,027
2,218,661 - - - -
2,078,822 2,044,277 - - 2,044,277
4,297,483 2,044,277 - - 2,044,277
$85,967,485 14,410,582 26,090,615 112,107 40,613,304

General revenue and transfers:

Taxes:
Property taxes
Sales taxes

Franchise taxes

Motor vehicle in-liew, unrestricted

Transient occupancy taxes

Total taxes

Transfers

Investment earmings
Rent

Total general revemies

Change in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year, as restated {note 11}

Net assets - end of year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial staterments.
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Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes In Net Assets

Govermmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
(2,845,122) - (2,845,122}
(18,308,238) - (18,308,238)
(5,361,183) - (5,361,183)
(8,874,883) - (8,874,883)
510,965 - 510,965
(5,369,113) - (5,369,115)
(2,853,399 - {2,853,399)
{43,100,975) - (43,100,975
- (2,218,661} (2,218,661)
- (34,545) (34,545)
- (2,253,206) (2,253,206)
(43,100,975) (2,253,206} {45,354,181)
16,421,961 - 16,421,961
24,072,743 - 24,072,743
1,416,236 - 1,416,236
5,100,399 - 5,100,399
841,745 - 841,745
47,853,084 - 47,853,084
3,369,224 27,618 3,396,842
305,082 - 305,082

2,378,910 {2,378,910) -
53,906,300 {2,351,292) 51,555,008
10,805,325 {4,604,498) 6,200,827
140,048,343 12,186,096 152,234,444
$ 150,853,673 7,581,598 158,435271

See accompanying noles to the basic financial staternents.



CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2008

Special Revenue Funds

Section § Other
General Housing Special Nutrition
Fund Assistance Revenue Program
ASSETS
Cash and investments (note 2} § 13,154,048 1,259,329 8,534,355 -
Restricted cash and investinents with fiscal agents (note 2) - - - -
Accounts receivable 1,048,530 4,416 887,706 50,778
Property lax receivable - - - -
Interest receivable 377,232 - 7.075 -
Due from other funds (note 3) 4,403,837 - 381.613 -
Due from other governmental entitics 3,577,329 40,528 774,638 481,982
Prepaid items and deposits - 3,386 - -
Land held for resale - - - -
Contracts, notes and loans receivable (note 4) - - - -
Total assets 22,560,996 1,307,659 10,585,387 532,760
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities $ 822,712 123,109 524,559 287,167
Salaries payable 938,437 - 163,137 13,985
Due to other funds (note 3) 371,447 883 2,420,837 1,615,340
Due to other governmental entities - 28,224 - -
Deposits payabie 107,377 - 254 203 -
Deferred revenue 294,791 - 369,736 -
Total liabilities 2,534,764 152,216 3,732,474 1,916,492
Fund balances (deficit):
Reserved:
Encumbrances 368,401 - 625,583 -
Prepaid items and deposits - 3,386 - -
Land held for resale - - - -
Long-term joans receivabie - - - -
Debt service 1,419,291 - - -
Total reserved 1,727,692 3386 625,583 -
Unreserved, designated:
Continuing appropriations 1,322.219 “ 2,061,604 “
Employee accrued benefits 862,511 - - -
Other 59,899 - - -
Rate stabilization - - - "
Continuing CIPs 179,369 - - -
Contingencies 9,000,000 - - -
Total unreserved, designated 11,423,938 - 2,061,004 “
Unreserved, undesignated
General fund 6,874,602 - - -
Special revenue funds - 1,152,057 4,166,326 (1,383,732)
Capital projects funds - - - -
Total unreserved, undesignated 6,874,602 1,152,057 4,166,326 (1,383,732}
Total fund balances {deficit) 20,026,232 1,155,443 6,853,113 (1,383,732}
Total fiabilities and fund balances $ 22,560,996 1,307,659 10,585,587 532,760

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Special Debt
Revenue Service Capital Project Funds
Fund Community Library Other Total
Sewer Development Redevelopment Construction Governmental Governmental
Service Comunission Fund Project Funds Funds
13,882,558 673,060 6,062,551 113,056 19,044,639 62,723,796
- 2,727,285 1,506,276 - 73 4,233,634
15,715 - 82,717 - 33,399 2,123,281
- - 8,177 - 75,958 84,135
- 303,834 133,291 8is 32,542 854,789
- - 1,499,753 - 438,380 6,743,583
1,647 - 264,556 1,109,833 590,015 6,840,528
- - - - - 3,386
- - 8,929,334 - 2,065,802 10,995,136
- - 2,822,152 - 4,889,874 7,712,026
13,899,920 3,704,179 21,308,807 1,223,704 27,190,682 102,314,294
59,823 283,833 1,063 - 180,660 2,282,926
19,136 - 172,099 - 64,592 1,371,386
- 742,217 - 1,106,088 481,771 6,738,583
64,175 596,719 - - 689,118
- - - - - 361,582
- - 922,500 1,109,833 211,995 2,508,833
78.959 1,090,225 1,692,381 2,215,921 939.018 14,352,456G
218,640 - - - £,125,987 2,278,611
- - - - - 3,386
- - 8,929,334 - 2,065,862 10,995,136
- - 2,822,152 - 4,889,874 7,712,026
- 2,613,934 - - 663,525 4,656,770
218,640 2.613,954 11,751,486 - 8,745,188 25,685,929
1,914,554 - - - 847,886 6,141,663
- - - - - 862,511
- - - - - 59,899
3,184,801 - - - - 3,184,801
2,489,095 - - - - 2,668,404
338,946 - - - - 9,338,946
7,923,396 - - - 847,886 22,256,224
- - n . - 6,874,602
5,678,925 - - - 13,780,490 23,354,266
- - 7,864,940 (992,217) 2,878,100 9,750,823
5,678,925 - 7,864,940 {592,217y 16,658,590 40,019,691
13,820,961 2,613,954 19.616,426 (992,217) 26,251,664 87,961,844
13,899,920 3,704,175 21,308,807 1,223,704 27,190,682 102,314,294

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to the Government-Wide Statement of Net Assets

June 30, 2008

Fund balances of governmental funds S 87,961,844
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities were not current financial resources. Therefore, they
were not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. Excluding the internal service funds
capital assets which are reported below, capital assets were adjusted as follows:
180,092,682

- Capital assets

- Accumulated depreciation (66,527,838)

Interest payable on long-term debt did not require current financial resources. Therefore, interest
payable was not reported as a liability in the governmenta! funds balance sheet. {433,382)

Certain revenues were not available to pay for cusrent-period expenditures and, therefore, were

deferred in funds. 1,872,560
Internal service funds were used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as

insurance, to individual funds. The assets and iiabilities of the internal service funds were included in

governmental activities in the government-wide statement of net assets. 9,599,111

Long-term Habilities were not due and payable in the current period. Therefore, they were not reported
in the governmental funds balance sheet. This amount excludes long-term liabilities reported in

Internal Service funds. {61,811,304)

Net assets of governmental activities 3 150,853,673

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2008
Special Revenue Funds

Section § Other
General Housing Special Nutrition
Fund Assistance Revenue Program
Revenues:
Taxes $ 33,638,924 - - -
Licenses and permits 799,452 - 1,780 -
Fines and forfeitures 1,084,647 - 67,590 -
Interest and rents 2,168,962 - 77,864 -
Intergovernmental 802,557 9,427,480 7,646,033 288,359
Charges for services 414,298 - 606,785 -
Other revenues 152,148 41,269 317,708 222,445
Total revenues 39,060,988 9,468,749 8,717,780 510,804
Expenditares:
Current:
General government 3,215,981 - 2,137,334 -
Public safety 25,393,406 “ 1,073,506 -
Transportation 2,678,673 - - -
Commumity development 1,128,843 8,115,750 1,098,394 876,471
Health - - 131,326 -
Culture and leisure 1,527,397 - 2,221,899 -
Capital outlay 364,546 4,923 475,279 -
Debt service:
Principal 196,709 - 195,000 -
Interest and fiscal charges 66,596 - 330,505 -
Total expenditares 34,572,551 8,120,673 7,663,243 876,471
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 4,488,437 1,348,076 1,054,537 (363,667
Other financing sources (usesy.
Transfers in (note 3) 700,000 - 986,006 375912
Transfers out (note 3) (2,709,705) - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,009,705) - 986,006 375,912
Net change in fund balances 2,478,732 1,348,076 2,040,543 10,245
Fund balances (deficit), beginning of vear,
as restated (note 11) 17,547,500 (192,633) 4,812,570 (1,393,977}
Fund balances (deficit), end of year $ 20,026,232 1,155,443 6,853,113 (1,383,732)

See accompanying nofes to the basic financial statements.
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Special Debt
Revenue Service Capital Project Funds
Fund Community Library Other Total
Sewer Development Redevelopment Construction Governmental Governmental
Service Commission Fund Project Funds Funds
- 11,766,428 - - 4,466,207 49,871,559
- - - - - 801,232
- - - - 170,130 1,322,347
- 8,665 608,291 4,205 501,237 3,369,224
- - 1,735,857 722,604 3,734,563 24,377,473
7,426,730 - - - 23,473 8,471,286
- 30,478 1,417,661 - 498.680 2,680,389
7,426,730 11,805,571 3,761,809 726,809 9,414,270 50,893,510
- - - - 1,198 5,354,513
- - - - 62,025 26,528,937
- - - - 1,077,625 3,756,298
- 2,120,909 9,022,853 - 1,357,933 23,721,153
7,295,243 - - - - 7,426,569
- - - - 2,527,563 6,276,859
- - 22,124 - 769,126 1,636,398
- 2,065,000 - - 435,000 2,851,709
- 2,017,843 - - 449 989 2,864,933
7,295,243 6,203,752 9,644,977 - 6,680,459 80,457,369
131,487 5,601,819 (3,283,168) 726,809 2,733,811 10,436,141
- 814,215 8,915,568 - 1,303,023 13,096,724
- (8,915,568) - - (1,526,173} (13,151,446}
- (8,101,353) 8,915,568 - {221,150) (54,722)
131,487 (2,499.534) 3,632,400 726,809 2,512,661 10,381,419
13,689,474 5,113,488 15,984,026 (1,719,026) 23,739,003 77,580,425
13,820,961 2,613,954 19,616,426 (992,217) 26,251,664 87,901,844

See accompanying notes 1o the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances to the Governmental-Wide Statement of Activities

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Changes in fund balances of governmental funds $ 10,381,419

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the government-wide
statement of activities, the cost of those assets are allocated over their estimated useful lives as
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which depreciation expense exceeded capital outlays

in the current year, net of disposals. (4,088,440

Repayment of bond principal and capitalized lease obligations are expenditures in governmental funds,
but the repayments reduces long-term labilities in the government-wide statement of net assets.
($85,678 of payments in capitalized lease obligations were recorded as functional expenses in the

governmental funds.) 2,977,387

Interest expense on long-term debt was reported in the government-wide statement of activities
but they did not require the use of current financial resources. Therefore, interest expense was not

reported as expenditures in governmental funds. The following amount represents the change in acerued

interest. 11,534

To record as an expense the net change in compensated absences in the statement of activities. (557,991)
Revenues in the government-wide staternent of activities that did not provide current financial resources

were not reported as revenues in the governmental funds. {467,902)

Internal service funds were used by management to charge the costs of certain activities, such as
insurance and fleet management, to individual funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal

service funds are reported with governmental activities. 66,915

To record the transfer of fand, buildings and other capital assets from the TDA Enterprise Fund. 2,482,403

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 10,805,325

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,
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ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and investments (note 2)

Resiricted cash and investments

with fiscal agents (note 2)

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid items and deposits

Totai current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets (note 5):
Nondepreciable assets
Depreciable assets, net of accumulated
depreciation
Total capital assets, net
Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Carrent Habilities:
Accounis payable and accrued liabilities
Sataries payabie
Due to other funds
Compensafed absences - due within one year
Note payable - due within one year
Selftinsurance claims payable -
due within one year
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabitities (note 7):
Tenant security deposit liability
Note payable - due in more than one year
Self-insurance claims payable -
due in more than one year
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Housing
Unrestricted
Total net assets

CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

June 34, 2008
Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activitics -
Kimbali Morgan Internal
TDA Towers Towers Total Service Funds
3 - 113,056 119,977 233,033 13,185,877
- 1,193,811 611,095 1,804,906 -
- 8§72 320 1,392 74,231
- - . - 27,903
- 77,508 81,809 159,407 47.000
- 1,385,247 813,491 2,108,738 13,335,011
- 315,814 212,568 528,382 -
- 4,910,200 2,899,678 7,909,878 1,612,180
- 3,220,014 3,212,246 8,438,260 1,612,180
- 5,226,014 3,212,246 8,438,260 1,612,180
- 6,611,261 4,025,737 10,636,998 14,947 191
- 76,061 39,546 115,607 589,008
- - - - 63,375
- - - - 3,000
- - - - 182,647
- - 179,857 179,857 -
- - - - 1,930,000
- 76,061 219,403 295,464 2,770,080
- 42,298 44,032 86,330 -
- - 2,673,606 2,673,606 -
- . - - 2,578,000
- 42,298 2,717,638 2.759.936 2,578,000
- 118,359 2,937.041 3,055,400 5,348,080
- 5,226,014 338,783 3,584,797 1,612,180
- 1,266,888 726,913 1,996,801 -
- - - - 7,986,931
$ - 6,492,902 1,088,690 7,581,598 8569111

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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For the year ended June 30, 2008

Operating revenues:
Rental income
Service charges
Other revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Maintenance and operations
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Interest income
interest expense
Miscellaneous expense

Total nonoperating
revenues (expenses)

Income (loss) before transfers
Capital contribution to governmental activities
Capital contribution to Metropolitan Transit System

Transfers in (note 3)
Transfers out (note 3)

Change in net assets

Net assets at beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Funds

Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities -
Kimbali Morgan Tnternal
TDA Towers Towers Total Service Funds
$ - 896,359 1,113,162 2,009,521 -
- - - - 9,329,643
- 26,792 7,964 34,756 33,646
- 923,151 1,121,126 2,044,277 9,383,289
- - - - 2,209,727
- 780,618 670,428 1,451,046 6,712,876
- 187,350 248 956 436,306 343,600
- 967,968 919,384 1,887,352 9,267,603
- (44.817) 201,742 156,925 115,686
- 7,346 20,272 27,618 -
- - (191,470) (191,470) -
(511) - - (511) -
(511} 7,346 (171,198) (164,363) -
{51 (37.471) 30,544 (7,438) 115,686
{2,482 ,403) - - {2,482,403) -
(2,218,150} - - (2,218,150) -
103,493 - - 103,493 95,000
- - - - {143,771)
{4,597,571) 37471 30,544 (4,604,498) 66,915
4,507 571 6,530,373 1,058,152 12,186,096 $,532,196
$ - 6,492,902 1,088,656 7,581,598 9,599,111

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CIEY OF NATIONAL CITY
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the vear ended June 30, 2008

Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities -
Kimbail Morgan internal
TDA Towers Towers Total Service Funds
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers/other funds 5 - 922,659 1,115,446 2,038,105 9,386,289
Cash payments to suppliers - (762,738 (555.105)  (1,317,843) (6,000,572)
Cash payments for general and administrative {78,096) - (160,906) {239,002} (2,116,561)
Net cash provided (used by) operating activities (78,096} 159,921 399,435 481,260 1,269,156
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Cash received from: other funds - - - - 119,292
Cash paid to other funds - - - - _ (218,254)
Net cash provided (used by) noncapital financing
activitics e - - - {98,962}
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assels - {59,605) (4.224) (63,829) (293,441}
Principal payments of note payable - - {168,586} (168.586) -
Interest paid - - {191,470} {191,470) -
Net cash provided (used by) capital and reiated
financing activities - (55,605 {364,280y (423,885) (293,441
Cash flows from investing activitices:
Interest income - 7,344 20,272 27616 -
Net cash provided (used by) investing activities - 7,344 20,272 27,616 -
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (78,096) 167,660 55427 84,991 876,753
Cash and equivalents, beginning of year 78,096 1,185.207 675,645 1,952,948 12,309,124
Cash and equivalents, end of year b - 1,306,867 731,072 2037939 13,185,877
Reconciliation of operating income fo net cash provided
by operating activities:
Operating income (loss) $ - {44,817) 201,742 156,925 115,686
Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities;
Depreciation “ 187,350 248,956 436,306 3450060
Changes in current assets and liabilities;
Accounts receivable - (492) (521 (1,0612) 3,000
Inventories - - - - (1,278
Prepaid items and deposits - (2,460) (2.114) (4,374) (41,781)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities {78,096} 20,340 (48.629) (106,385) 392,363
Salaries payable - - - - 30,751
Due to other funds - - - - -
{Ineamned revenue - . . . .
Compensated absences - - - - 62,415
Self-insurance claims payable - - - - 363,000
Total adjustments (78,096) 204,738 197,693 324,335 1,183,470
Net cash provided (used) by operating activitics $  {78,098) 159,921 399,435 481,260 1,269,156
Noncash investing, capital and financing activities
Capital confribution to governmental activitics $ 2,482,403 - - 2,482,403 .
Capital contribution to Metropolitan Transit System 2,218,150 - - 2,218,150 -
$ 4,700,553 - - 4,700,553 -

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements,
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2008

Library
Private-
Purpose
Trust
ASSETS
Cash and investments (note 2) $ 47,169
Interest receivable 339
Total assets 47,508
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable -
Total Labilities -
NET ASSETS
Held in trust for private purposes $ 47,508

Agency

Funds

650,981

650,981

650,981

650,981

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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Total
Fiduciary

Funds

698,150

339

698,489

650,981

650,981

47,508



CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds

Year ended June 30, 2008

Library
Private-
Purpose
Trust
Additions:

Investment income $ 1,813
Total additions 1,813
Net increase (decrease) 1,813

Net assets, beginning of year 45,695
Net assets, end of year $ 47,508

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies

The basic financial statements of the City of National City, California (City} have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied
to governmental agencies. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and
financial reporting principles. The more significant of the City’s accounting policies are
described below.

A.

Reporting Entity

The City was incorporated September 17, 1887 under the general laws of the State
of California. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of government
and provides basic local governmental services including public safety (police and
fire), maintenance and construction of public improvements, cultural, recreation,
planning, zoning, transportation, health services and general administration. In
addition, the City operates the Transit Enterprise Fund and the Community
Development Commission (including Morgan Towers and Kimball Towers
Enterprise Funds).

The financial reporting entity consists of (a) the primary government, the City, (b)
organizations for which the primary government is financially accountable, and
(¢) other organizations for which the primary government is not accountable, but
for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary
government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial
statements to be misleading or incomplete.

As required by GAAP, these basic financial statements present the City and its
component units, entities for which the City is considered to be financially
accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities are, in
substance, part of the City’s operations and data from these units are combined
with data of the City. Each blended component unit has a June 30 year-end. The
City had no discretely presenied component units. The following entities are
reported as blended component units:

Community Development Commission of the City of National Cify - The
Community Development Commission of the City of National City (the
“CDC”™) was established in April 1967 pursuant to provisions of the
California Health and Safety Code. The CDC was created to undertake
and carry out the redevelopment of certain areas within the City which the
CDC has determined to be blighted areas by encouraging development of
residential, commercial, industrial, recreational and public facilities and to
assist neighborhood redevelopment through residential property
improvement loans and housing assistance payments to low and moderate
income earners. The City Council is the Governing Board of the CDC.
Separate CDC financial statements may be obtained from the City’s
Finance Department located at 1243 National City Boulevard, National
City, California 91950.
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, {Continued)

National City Joint Powers Financing Authority - The National City Joint
Powers Financing Authority (the “NCIPFA”) was created pursuant to a
joint exercise of powers agreement entered into by and between the City
and the CDC on April 16, 1991. The purpose of such agreement was to
provide for the financing and construction of a new police facility and a
new community center. The NCIPFA is administered by a commission
consisting of the members of the City Council and all voting power of the
NCJIPFA resides in the commission. The NCIPFA exclusively benefits the
City. There are no separate financial statements available.

Parking Authority of the City of National City - In July 1977, the Parking
Authority of the City of National City (the “Authority™) was activated
pursuant to the Parking Law of 1949 for the financing and construction of
the Plaza Bonita Parking Facility. The City Council 1s the governing
board of the Authority. The Authority exclusively benefits the City. The
capital assets of the Authority have been included in the Government
Wide Financial Statements. There are no separate financial statements
available.

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are
accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its
assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses, as
appropriate. Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in
individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the
means by which spending activities are controlled.

Governmeni-Wide Financial Statements

The City’s Government-Wide Financial Statements include a Statement of Net
Assets and a Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets. These
statements present summaries of governmental and business-type activities for the
City accompanied by a total column. Fiduciary activities of the City are not
included in the Government-wide statements.
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. (Continued)

These basic financial statements are presented on an "ecomomic resources”
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all of the
City’s assets and liabilities, including capital assets, as well as infrastructure
assets, and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of
Net Assets. The Statement of Activities presents changes in net assets. Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they
are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is
incurred.

Certain types of transactions are reported as program revenues for the City in
three categories:

e Charges for services
e Operating grants and contributions
o Capital grants and contributions

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB Statement No. 34 in
regards to inferfund activities, payables and receivables. All internal balances in
the Statement of Net Assets have been eliminated except those representing
balances between the governmental activities and the business-type activities,
which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total primary
government column. In the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets,
internal service fund transactions have been eliminated; however, those
transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not been
eliminated. The following interfund activities have been eliminated:

Due to/from other funds

Loans receivable/related deferred revenue
Advances to/from other funds

Transfers in/out

The City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements (including all NCGA
Statements and Interpretations currently in effect) as well as the following
pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, to the business type
activities, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting
Research Bulletins (ARB) of the committee on Accounting Procedure. The City
applies all applicable FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after
November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with or contradict GASB
pronouncements.
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Noltes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds Financial Statements

Governmental Fund Financial Statements include a Balance Sheet and a
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for all major
governmental funds and non-major funds aggregated. An accompanying schedule
is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in net assets as presented in
these statements to the net assets presented in the Government-Wide [inancial
Statements. The City has presented all major funds that met the applicable
criteria.

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or "current financial
resources” measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Accordingly, only current assets and current liabilities are included on the
Balance Sheet. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balances presents increases (revenues and other financing sources) and decreases
{expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the modified
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in
which they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of the
current period.

Revenues are recorded when received in cash, except for that revenues subject to
accrual (generally 60 days after year-end) are recognized when due. The primary
revenue sources, which have been treated as susceptible to accrual by the City, are
property tax, sales tax, intergovernmental revenues and other taxes. Expenditures
are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is
incurred.

Deferred revenues arise when potential revenues do not meet both the
“measurable” and “‘available” criteria for recognition in the current period.
Deferred revenues also arise when the government receives resources before it
has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to incurring
qualifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition
criteria are met or when the government has a legal claim to the resources, the
deferred revenue is removed and revenue is recognized.

The Reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide

Financial Statements is provided to explain the differences created by the
integrated approach of GASB Statement No. 34.
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, (Continued)

The City reported the following types of major governmental funds:

General Fund

This fund is used to account for resources, which are not required legally or by
sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund.

Section 8 Housing Assistance Special Revenue Fund

This fund is used to account for the activities of Section 8§ Housing Assistance
Program. The program provides rental assistance to low income families by
subsidizing a portion of the rent directly to landlords on behalf of low income
households.

Other Special Revenue Fund

This represents a combination of minor and less active funds that the City has
combined for reporting purposes.

Nutrition Program Special Revenue Fund

This fund is used for operations of the Nutrition grant.

Sewer Service Special Revenue Fund

This fund is used to account for the collection of sewer connection fees and
monthly sewer service charges used for the construction and maintenance of City
SEWerS.

Community Development Commission Debt Service Fund

This fund is used to account for debt service of the Community Development
Commission.

Redevelopment Capital Project Fund

This fund is used to account for the administrative expenditures of the
Community Development Commission and redevelopment capital projects.

Library Construction Project Capital Project Fund

This fund is used to account for activities of the library construction project.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statemenis

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets, a
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets, and a
Statement of Cash Flows for each major proprietary fund.

36.



(1)

CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, (Continued)

A separate column representing internal service funds is also presented in these
statements. However, internal service balances and activities have been combined
with the governmental activities in the Government-Wide Financial Statements.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the "economic resources” measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilities
(whether current or noncurrent) are included on the Statement of Net Assets. The
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets presents
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets, Under the
accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they
are carned while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is
mcurred.  In these funds, receivables have been recorded as revenue and
provisions have been made for uncollectible amounts. In accordance with GASB
Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds
and Other Government Entities that Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, the City
applies all GASB pronouncements currently in effect as well as Financial
Accounting Standard Board Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles
Board Opinions and Accounting Research Bulletins of the Commitiee on
Accounting Procedure issued on or before November 30, 1989.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated
from the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are reported as
nonoperating revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential
to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as
nonoperating expenses.

The City reported the following types of major proprietary funds:

TDA Fund

This fund is used to account for allocations received by the City pursuant to the
Transportation Development Act used for the operations of the National City
Transit program.

Kimball Towers

This fund is used to account for activities relating to the operations of Kimball
Tower, which is used to provide housing to low and moderate income seniors,

Morgan Towers

This fund is used to account for activities relating to the operations of Morgan
Tower, which is used to provide housing to low and moderate income seniors.
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

(Continued)

() Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, (Continued)

The City also reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds

These funds are used to account for interdepartmental operations where it is the
stated intent that costs of providing services to the departments of the City on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily by charges to the user
departments.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Fiduciary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Assets and a
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets. The City’s fiduciary funds
represent private-purpose trust fund and agency funds. The private-purpose trust
fund is used to account for resources legally held in trust for special purposes.
The Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not
involve measurement of results of operations. The Agency funds are accounted
for using an accrual basis of accounting.

C Use of Restricted/Unrestricted Net Assets

When an expense i1s incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net assets are available, the City’s policy is to apply restricted net
assets first.

D. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

The City pools its available cash for investment purposes. The City’s cash and
cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-
term investments with original maturity of three months or less from the date of
acquisition, Cash and cash equivalents are combined with investments and
displayed as Cash and Investments.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting
Jfor Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, highly liquid market
investments with maturities of one year or less at time of purchase are stated at
amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. Market value is
used as fair value for those securities for which market quotations are readily
available.
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The City participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California,
entitled Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which has invested a portion of
the pool funds in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. LAIF’s
investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of the State of
California collateralizing these investments. In addition, these Structured Notes
and Asset-Backed Securities are subject to market risk as to change in interest
rates.

Resiricted Cash and Investments

Certain restricted cash and investments are held by fiscal agents for the
redemption of bonded debt and for acquisition and construction of capital
projects.

Interfund Transactions

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other
funds™ (1.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other
funds” (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). Any residual balances
outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type activities are
reported in the Governmental-Wide Financial Statements as “internal balances.”

Advances between funds, reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a
fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that
they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial
reSOUICES.

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventories are stated at cost using the average cost method. Payments made to
vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2008 are recorded
as prepaid items. The City uses the consumption method when reporting prepaid
items. Prepaid items are recorded as an asset and are offset by a reserve in the
fund financial statements.

Land Held for Resale

Land hkeld for resale is recorded at the lower of cost or estimated net realizable
value. Fund balances are reserved in amounts equal to the carrying value of land
and buildings held for resale, because such assets are not available to finance the
City’s current operations.

39



CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

{Continued)
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1

Capital Assets

The City’s assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost.
City policy has set the capitalization threshold for reporting general capital assets
at $5,000 (including infrastructure assets). Gifts or contributions of capital assets
are recorded at fair market value when received. Depreciation is recorded on a
straight-line basis over the useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings and Improvements 10 -50 years
Machinery and Equipment 2 -20 vears
Infrastructure 25 .75 years

In June 1999, the GASB issued Statement No. 34 which requires the inclusion of
infrastructure capital assets in local governments’ basic financial statements. In
accordance with Statement No. 34, the City has included the value of all
infrastructures in the Basic Financial Statements.

The City defines infrastructure as the basic physical assets that allow the City to
function. The assets include the streets, water purification and distribution
system, sewer collection and treatment system, parks and recreation, lands and
improvement system, storm water conveyance system, and buildings combined
with the site amenities such as parking and landscaped areas used by the City in
the conduct of its business. Each major infrastructure system can be divided into
subsystems. For example, the street system can be subdivided into pavement,
curb and gutters, sidewalks, medians, streetlights, traffic control devices (signs,
signals and pavement markings), landscaping and land.

These subsystems were not delineated in the basic financial statements. The
appropriate  operating department maintains information regarding the
subsystems.

Interest accrued during capital assets construction, if any, is capitalized for the
business-type and proprietary funds as part of the asset cost.

For ali infrastructure systems, the City elected to use the Basic Approach as
defined by GASB Statement No. 34 for infrastructure reporting. The City
commissioned an appraisal of City owned infrastructure and property as of
June 30, 2003. This appraisal determined the estimated historical cost, which is
defined as the actual cost to acquire new property in accordance with market
prices at the time of first construction/acquisition. Estimated historical costs were
developed in one of three ways: (1) historical records; (2) standard unit costs
appropriate for the construction/acquisition date; or (3) present cost indexed by a
reciprocal factor of the price increase from the construction/acquisition date to the
current date. The accumulated depreciation, defined as the total depreciation
from the date of construction/acquisition to the current date on a straight line,
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unrecovered cost method was computed using industry accepted life expectancies
for each infrastructure system. The book value was then computed by deducting
the accamulated depreciation from the estimated historical cost.

Interest Payable

In the government-wide financial statements, interest payable on long-term debt is
recognized as the hability is incurred for governmental fund types and proprietary
fund types.

In the fund financial statements, proprietary fund types recognize the interest
payable when the liability is incurred.

Compensated Absences

In the governmental fund financial statements, compensated absences are
recorded as expenditures in the year paid, as it is the City’s policy to liquidate any
unpaid vacation or sick leave at year-end from future resources rather than
currently available and expendable resources. Accordingly, the entire unpaid
liability for employee compensated absences related to governmental fund types
is recorded in the government-wide financial statements and is typically
liquidated by the General Fund.

For proprietary funds, the estimated value of the total accrued vacation and vested
sick leave is recorded as current liability in the fund financial statements and
government-wide financial statements and is typically liquidated by the respective
enterprise and internal service funds.

Long-Term Debt

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term
obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities.
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds
payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the
related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.
The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financial sources. Premiums
received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts
on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or
not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.
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M.

Fund Balances - Reservations and Designations

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund
balances for amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally
restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of fund
balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

Nei Assels

In the government-wide financial statements, net assets are classified in the
following categories:

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt - This amount consists of
capital assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding
debt that attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of the
assets.

Restricted Net Assets - This amount is restricted by external creditors,
grantors, confributors, laws or regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted Net Assets - This amount is all net assets that do not meet the
definition of “invested in capital assets, net of related debt” or “restricted
net assets.”

Property Taxes

The City has elected, by ordinance, that the duties of assessing and collecting
property taxes be performed by the San Diego County Assessor and Tax
Collector, respectively. Tax levies cover the period from July 1 to June 30 of each
year. All tax liens attach annually on the first day in March preceding the fiscal
year for which the taxes are levied. Taxes are levied on both real and personal
property as it exists on that date.

Secured property taxes are levied against real property and are due and payable in
two equal installments. The first installment is due on November 1 and becomes
delinquent if not paid by December 10. The second installment is due on
February 1 and becomes delinquent if not paid by April 10. Unsecured personal
property taxes are due on July 1 each year. These taxes become delinquent if not
paid by August 31.

The City records property tax revenues in the fiscal year to which they relate
rather than at the related lien date.
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One of the CDC’s primary sources of revenue is from property tax increments.
The assessed valuation of all property within the Downtown Redevelopment
Project area was determined on the date of adoption of the Redevelopment Plan.
Property tax related to the incremental increase in assessed values after the
adoption of the Redevelopment Plan are allocated to the CDC; all taxes on the
“frozen” assessed valuation of the property are allocated to the City and unrelated
taxing agencies.

P. Community Development Commission Rental Revenue

Rental revenues received from tenants in the CDC’s Morgan Towers Housing
Project (an enterprise fund) are subsidized with Federal government funds under a
Section 8 contract with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
(HUD). The rent subsidy received from HUD is equal to the excess of the fair
market rent of the apartment units over the amounts paid by the tenants. The
amounts paid by the tenants are subject to certain Section 8 eligibility
requirements and application procedures.

Q. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, In
addition, estimates affect the reported amount of expenses. Actual results could
differ from these estimates and assumptions.

() Cash and Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2008 are classified in the accompanying financial
statements as follows:

Statement of Net Assets:
Cash and investments $ 76,142,706
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agents 6,038,540
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets:
Cash and investments 698,150
Total cash and investments 82.879.396
Cash and investments as of June 30, 2008 consist of the following:
Cash on hand $ 625
Deposits with financial institutions 3,503,115
Investments 79.375.656
Total cash and investments $ 82.879.396
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Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment
Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the
California Government Code and the City’s investment policy. The table also identifies
certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, if
more restrictive) that address interest rate risk and concentration of credit risk. This table
does not address investments of debt proceeds held by fiscal agent that are governed by
the provisions of debt agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of the
California Government Code or the City’s investment policy.

Authorized *Maximum *Maximum
Investment Types By Investment *Maximum  Percentage Investment
Authorized by State Law Policy Maturity Of Portfolio  in One Issuer
Local Agency Bonds Yes 5 years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations Yes 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities Yes 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptances Yes 180 days 5% 5%
Commercial Paper Yes 180 days 15% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit Yes 2 years 30% None
Repurchase Agreements Yes [ year None None
Reverse Repurchase Agreements No 92 days 20% of base value ~ None
Medium-Term Notes Yes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds Yes N/A 15% 10%
Money Market Mutual I'unds Yes N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities Yes 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds Yes N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Yes N/A None None
IPA Pools (other investment pools) Yes N/A None None

* Based on state law requirements or investment policy requirements, whichever is more restrictive.
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Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investment of debt proceeds held by fiscal agent are governed by provisions of the debt
agreements, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the
City’s investment policy. The table below identifies the investment types that are
generally authorized for investments held by fiscal agent. The table also identifies certain
provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk and concentration of
credit risk.

Maximum Maximum
Authorized Maximum Percentage Investment
Investment Type Maturity Allowed in One Issuer

U.8. Treasury Obligations None None None
U.S. Agency Securities None None None
Banker's Acceptances 360 days None None
Commercial Paper 270 days None None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None None
Investment Contracts 30 years None None
Certificates of Deposit None None None
Repurchase Agreements None None None
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities None None None
State Bonds or Notes None None None
Municipal Bonds or Notes None None None

Disclosures Relating to [nterest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the
greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market interest rates. One of the ways
that the City manages its exposure 1o interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination of
shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so
that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as
necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.
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Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including
investments held by fiscal agent) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the
following table that shows the distribution of the City’s investments by maturity:

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

12 Months 13 to 24 25 to 60

Investment Type Total or Less Months Months

U.S. Agency Securities $ 9,328,961 - - 9,328 961
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 7,621,041 4,855,298 2,765,743 -
Local Agency Investment Fund 57,776,567 57,776,567 - -
Held by Fiscal Agent:

Commercial Paper 2,844,000 2,344,000 - 500,000

Money Market Funds 1,805,087 1,805.087 - -

Total $79.375,656 66,780,952 2,765,743 9,828,961

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its
obligation to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the
minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California Government Code, the

City’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year end for each
investment type.

Minimum Rating as of Year End
Legal Not
Investment Type Rating AAA Rated
U.S. Agency Securities $ 9,328,961 AAA 9,328,961 -
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 7,621,041  N/A - 7,621,041
Local Agency Investment Fund 57,776,567  N/A - 57,776,567
Held by Fiscal Agent:

Commercial Paper 2,844,000 A - 2,844,000
Money Market Funds 1.805.087 N/A 1.805.087 -
Total $79,375,656 11,134,048 68.241,608
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Investments in any one issuer that represents 5% or more of total investments by
reporting unit (primary government, governmental activities, major fund, nonmajor funds
in the aggregate, etc.) are as follows,

$2.344,000 of the cash and investments {including amounts held by fiscal agent)
reported in the Community Development Commission Debt Service Fund (a major
fund of the City) are held in the form of unrated commercial paper issued by
General Electric that matures on July 31, 2008.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository
financial institution, a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be
able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The
custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty (c.g., broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of
another party. The California Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk
for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for deposits: The
California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by
state or local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool
held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental
unit). The market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least
110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies. California law also allows
financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes
having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits.

As of June 30, 2008, City investments in the following investment types were held by the
same broker-dealer (counterparty) that was used by the City to buy the securities:

Reported

Investment Tvpe Amount
.S, Agency Securities $9,328,961
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 7,621,041

For investments identified herein as held by fiscal agent, the fiscal agent generally selects
the investment under the terms of the applicable trust agreement, acquires the investment,
and holds the investment on behalf of the reporting government.
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Investment in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is
regulated by the California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the
State of California. The fair value of the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the
accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of the
fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio {in relation to the amortized
cost of that portfolio). The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting
records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. LAIF is not
rated.

Restricted Cash and Investments of Community Development Commission Enterprise
Fund

The activities of Morgan Towers and Kimball Towers activities are recorded in
and presented as Community Development Commission Enterprise Fund. In
accordance with HUD requirement, the CDC maintains the following:

Morgan Towers:

Replacement reserve $ 453,068
Residual receipts reserve 142,250
MIP and insurance impounds reserve 15,777
Total Morgan Towers $ 611,095
Kimball Towers:
Residual receipts reserve $ 295,860
Other 897.951
Total Kimball Towers $1.193.811
Total restricted cash and investments $1.804.906

Morgan Towers ,
e Reserve for replacements of $453,068 represents a monthly deposit of
$3,127 plus income earned thereon. This reserve will be used for the
future replacement of property with HUD’s approval.

¢ Residual receipts reserve of $142,250 is an accumulation of surplus cash
as calculated by HUD’s Computation of Surplus Cash, Distributions and
Residual Receipts, which can be expended only with HUD’s approval.

e Reserve for MIP and insurance impounds of $12,028 and $3,749,
respectively, totaling $15,777 represent amounts held for the future
payment of property and mortgage insurance.

Kimball Towers

e Residual receipts reserve of $295,860 is an accumulation of surplus cash
as calculated by HUD’s Computation of Surplus Cash, Distributions and
Residual Receipts, which can be expended only with HUD’s approval.

¢ Other restricted cash and investments totaling $897,951 is included in the
accompanying basic financial statements.
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(3) Interfund Transactions

Due To/From Other Funds
Current interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2008 are as follows:

Due From Other Funds Due To Other Funds Amount

General Fund Other Special Revenue Fund $2.420,036
Nutrition Program Special Revenue Fund 116,470
Library Construction Capital Projects Fund 1,106,088
Community Development Commission

Debt Service Fund 742,217

Other Governmental Funds 14,026

Internal Service Funds 5,000

Subtotal — General Fund 4,403,837

Other Special Revenue Fund General Fund 371,447
Other Special Revenue Funds 480

Other Governmental Funds 9.686

Subtotal — Other Special Revenue Fund 381,613

Other Governmental Funds Other Governmental Funds 458,059
Other Special Revenue Fund 321

Subtotal — Other Governmental Funds 458,380

Redevelopment Capital Projects Fund  Section 8 Housing Assistance
Special Revenue Fund 883
Nutrition Program Special Revenue Fund __1.498.870

Subtotal — Redevelopment Capital Projects Fund 1,499,753

Interfund balances are primarily related to short-term borrowings to cover deficit
cash balances at June 30, 2008.
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Interfund Transfers

For the vear ended June 30, 2008, interfund transfers were as follows:

Transfers In Transfers Out Amount
General Fund Other Governmental Funds $ 700,000 (a)
Other Governmental Funds General Fund 1,305,023 (b)
Nufrition Program

Special Revenue Fund General Fund 375,912
Other Special Revenue Fund General Fund 830,277
TDA Enterprise Fund General Fund 103,493
Internal Service Funds General Fund 95,0060
Other Special Revenue Fund Other Governmental Funds 11,958
Other Special Revenue Fund Internal Service Fund 143,771
Community Development

Commisston Debt Service Fund  Other Governmental Funds 814,215 (¢)
Redevelopment Community Development

Capital Projects Fund Commission Debt Service Fund 8.915.568 (d)

$13.295.217

Significant interfund transfers were primarily to: (a) reimburse the General Fund for
related highways and streets expenditures; (b) provide funding for library operating
expenditures; (¢) provide funding to cover debt service payments made during the fiscal
year that related to low and moderate development; (d) provide funding for future capital
project expenditures.
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Contracts. Notes and Loans Receivable

%)

As of June 30, 2008, the Confracts, Notes and Loans Receivable consisted of the

following:

Community Development Commission Governmental Fund:
Residential property improvement loans

First-time homebuyers loans
Total

Capital Assets

$6,474,958
1.237.068

$7.712.026

The following is a summary of changes in the capital assets for governmental

activities at June 30, 2008:

Governmental-type activities:
Depreciable:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastrocture

Total cost of depreciable
capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation
Net depreciable capital assets
Non-depreciable:
Land
Rights of way

Total non-depreciable
capital assets

Capital assets, net

Balance at Balance at
July 1, 2007* Additions Deletions June 30, 2008
$ 42,995,823 1,348,144 - 44,343,967
11,353,721 574,508 {17,503 11,910,726
103,421,595 139,609 ( 34.284) 103,526,920
159771139 2,062,261 (51,787} 161,781 613
(13,008.007)y  (1,333,655) - {14,343,662)
(6,856,928) {818,343) 1,167 {7.674,104)
{46.442.270%  (2.438.306) 23.087 {48.857 509
{66,307.203) (4,392.304) 24.234 (70,875.275)
93,463,934  (2,530,043) (27,553) 90,906,338
19,125,598 300,600 - 20,025,598
4245 088 - - 4,245,088
23.370.686 900,060 - 24.270.686
$116.834.620  _{1,630,043) (27.553) 115,177,024

* Beginning balances have been restated. See footnote 11 for additional information.
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Depreciation expense for governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2008 of
$4,592.304 was allocated as follows:

General Government $ 349533
Community Development 1,440,234
Public Safety 849,051
Transportation 1,953,486

$4.592,304

The following is a summary of changes in the capital assets for business-type activities at
June 30, 2008:

Balance at Balance at
July 1. 2007 Additions Deletions June 30, 2008

Business-type activities:

Depreciable:
Buildings and improvements $17,629,514 4,223 (1,997,636) 15,636,107
Machinery and equipment 5,453,644 39.604 {5.051.095) 462.153
Total depreciable capital assets 23,083,158 63,827 {7.048,725) 16,098,260
Less accumulated depreciation (11,082.019) (436,306) 3.329.943 (8,188,382)
Total depreciable assets, net 12.001.139 (372.479)  (3.718.782) 7.909.878
Non-depreciable assets:
Land 1,428,382 - {900,000) 528.382
Total non-depreciable capital assets 1.428.382 - (900.600) 528.382
Capital assets, net $13.429,521 (372,479 (4,618.782) 3.438.260

Depreciation expense for business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2008 was
allocated as follows:

Kimball Towers $ 187,350
Morgan Towers 248,956
Total depreciation expense : $436,306
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Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; natural disasters; and workers” compensation
claims. A self-insurance (internal service) fund is used to account for the City’s
insurance programs. Operating revenues of this fund represent payments from other City
funds and are based upon estimated umbrella insurance premium expenses, self-insurance
losses and other operating expenses.

The City is a member of the San Diego Pooled Insurance Program Authority (the
“Program Authority™), a joint powers authority established to provide insurance and
insurance-related services to its members. The Program Authority’s governing board
consisis of one member from each participating city and is responsible for the selection of
management as well as budgeting and finance. Insurance activities are financed by
charges to member cities. Each participating city has its own self-insured retention level.
The City is insured for general liability with a self-insured retention of $150,000.

Losses between the self-insured retention level and $2,000,000 are shared by the
participant cities. Excess liability insurance coverage is provided by the Program
Authority for losses greater than $2,000,000 up to $35,000,000. Losses in excess of
$35,000,000 are not covered and are self- funded by the City. The City 1s completely self-
insured for unemployment claims.

The City is also a member of CSAC Excess Insurance Authority (“CSAC™), a joint
powers authority, for workers compensation claims. The City is self-insured for workers
compensation claims and losses up to $500,000 per occurrence. Losses between the self-
insured retention level and $5,000,000 are shared by the participant cities. Losses in
excess of $5,000,000 up to $200,000,000 are reinsured by a commercial insurance
carrier. The City is completely self-insured for unemployment claims.

During the current year, there were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from

the prior yvear. For each of the past three fiscal years, the settlements have not exceeded
the City’s insurance coverage.
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At June 30, 2008, the City accrued $4,508,000 of workers’ compensation and general
liability claims representing estimates of amounts to be paid for actual and incurred but
not reported claims based upon past experience, modified for current trends and
information. Allocated claim adjustment expenses are included in claim labilities.
While the ultimate amount of losses incurred through June 30, 2008 is dependent on
future developments, based upon information from the City Attorney, outside counsel
and others involved with the administration of the programs, City management believes
that the aggregate accrual is adequate to cover such losses. For the past three years, no
settlements or claims payments have exceeded the amount of the applicable coverage.
For the past two fiscal years, the changes in the City’s liability for claims payable are
summarized as follows:

Fiscal Year 2007-08 Fiscal Year 2006-07

Unpaid claims, July 1 $ 4,145,600 2,105,127

Incurred claims and adjustments 2,139,017 3,381,579

Claims paid (1,776,617 (1.341.706)
Total $.4.508,000 4,145,000
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(7 Long-Term Debt

Following is a summary of long-term debt transactions for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2008:
Classification
Amount Due  Amount Due
Balance at Balance at Within Beyend
July 1. 2007  Additions  Deletions  June 30, 2008  One Year One Year

Governmental Activities:
National City Joint
Powers Financing
Authority:
Lease Revenus
Refunding Bonds $ 4,220,600 - (300,000% 3,920,000 315,000 3,603,000

Commurity Development
Commission:

1999 Tax Allocation Bonds 4,435,000 - (110,000 4,325,000 115,060 4,210,060
2004 Tax Allocation Bonds 5,395,000 - (250,000) 5,145,000 260,000 4,883,000
2005 Series A and BB Tax
Allocation Bonds 34,055,000 - {1,705,600) 32,350,000 1,765,600 30,585,060
General Obligation Bonds 5,726,000 - (135,000) 5,583,000 145,000 5,440,000
HUD 108 Bond 2003 A 6,380,000 - (193.060) _6.185.000 210,000 5.975.000
Total Bonds 60,205,660 - (2,695,000) 57,510,000 2,810,600 54,760,000
Claims Payable 4,145,000  2,139.017 {1,776,017) 4,508,000 1,930,000 2,578,006
Compensated Absences 2,450,635 722,242 (101,836) 3,111,061 1,784,383 1,326,678
Capitalized Lease Obligations 1,655.327 - (282.387) 1.372.940 273,205 1,089,735
Total Governmental
Activities 68,495,982 2,861,259 (4,835,240) 66,502,001 6,797,588 39,704,413
Business-type Activities:
Note Payable 3.022.049 - {168,586y _2.853.463 179,857 2.673.606
Total Primary
Government $71.518,031 2,861,259 (5,023,826) 69355464 6,977.445 62,378,619

Nationa! City Joint Powers Financing Authority (NCJPFA) Lease Revenue
Refunding Bonds

The NCJPFA issued $6,255,000 of refunding bonds on October 1, 1998 to provide funds
for the advance refunding of the previously issued bonds. Interest on the bonds is
payable semiannually on each April I and October I, commencing April 1, 1999. The
bonds are special obligations of NCJPFA secured by a pledge of revenues which consist
of lease payments received by NCIPFA, as lessor, from the City, as lessee.
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Long-Term Debt., (Continued)

The bonds have interest rates that range from 3.20% to 3.95 % for those that mature from
1999 through 2008 and 4.70% for those that mature from 2009 through 2017. The bonds
maturing on or before October 1, 2008 are not subject to optional redemption prior to
maturity. The bonds maturing on or after October 1, 2009 are subject to optional
redemption prior to maturity on October 1, 2008, and any payment date thereafter at the
option of NCJFPA, as a whole or in part pro rata among maturities and by lot within a
maturity, expressed as percentages of the principal amount to be redeemed, plus accrued
interest to the redemption date as follows:

October 1, 2008 and April 1, 2009 102%
October 1, 2009 and April 1, 2010 101%
Qctober 1, 2010 and thereafler 100%

The annual debt service payments for the bonds are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 315,000 175,657 490,657
2010 325,000 161,798 486,798
2011 345,000 146,053 491,053
2012 360,000 129,486 489,486
2013 375,600 112,213 487,213
2014 400,000 94,000 494,000
2015 420,000 74,730 494 730
2016 435,000 54,638 489,638
2017 460,000 33,606 493,606
2018 485,000 11,398 496,398
Total $3.920.000 993,579 4.913,579
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Long-Term Debt. (Continued)

Community Development Commission 1999 Tax Allocation Bonds

In June 1999, the Commission issued $5,050,000 in Tax Allocation Bonds for the Q
Avenue Redevelopment project. The bonds consist of $1,085,000 in serial bonds which
mature from 2000 to 2010 in amounts ranging from $45,000 to $125,000, and $1,425,000
in term bonds which mature in 2019, and $2,540,000 in term bonds which mature in

2029. Interest is payable semi-annually on February 1 and August 1, at interest rates
ranging from 3.30% to 4.50%.

The annual debt service requirements for the 1999 Tax Allocation Bonds outstanding are
as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 115,000 214,802 329,802
2010 120,000 209,690 329,690
2011 125,000 204,237 329,237
2012 130,000 198,175 328,175
2013 135,000 191,550 326,550
2014 145,000 184,550 329,550
2015 150,000 177,176 327,176
2016 155,000 169,550 324,550
2017 165,000 161,549 326,549
2018 175,000 153,050 328,050
2019 180,000 144,175 324,175
2020 190,000 134,925 324,925
2021 200,000 125,050 325,050
2022 210,000 114,543 324,543
2023 220,000 103,525 323,525
2024 235,000 91,866 326,866
2025 245,000 79,566 324,566
2026 260,000 66,625 326,625
2027 270,000 53,044 323,044
2028 285,000 38,822 323,822
2029 300,000 23,831 323,831
2030 315,000 8.072 323,072

Total $4.325.000 2,848.373 7,173,373
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Long-Term Debt, (Continued)

Community Development Commission 2004 Tax Allocation Bonds

In June 2004, the Commission issued $5.860,000 Tax Allocation Bonds to finance a
portion of the cost to construct a fire station, library, and community art center. The
bonds consist of $3,045,000 in serial bonds, which mature from 2005-2015 in amounts
ranging from $220,000 to $330,000, and $1,085,000 in term bonds, which matures in
fiscal year 2029. Interest is paid semi-annually on February 1 and August [, at interest
rates ranging from 1.50% to 5.50%.

The annual debt service requirements for the 2004 Tax Allocation Bonds outstanding are
as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 260,000 231,348 491,348
2010 265,000 223,534 488,534
2011 275,000 214,685 489,685
2012 285,000 204,880 489,880
2013 295,000 194,145 489,145
2014 303,000 182,440 487,440
2015 315,000 169,883 484,883
2016 330,000 156,413 486,413
2017 - 149,400 149,400
2018 - 149,400 149,400
2019 - 149,400 149 400
2020 - 149 400 149,400
2021 - 149,400 149,400
2022 - 149,400 149,400
2023 - 149,400 149,400
2024 - 149,400 149,400
2025 - 149,400 149,400
2026 - 149,400 149,460
2027 345,000 140,775 485,775
2028 360,000 123,150 483,150
2029 380,000 104,650 484,630
2030 400,000 84,150 484,150
2031 420,000 61,600 481,600
2032 445,000 37,813 482,813
2033 465,000 12.788 477.788

Total $5,145.000 3,636,254 8,781,254
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Long-Term Debt, (Continued)

Community Development Commission 2005 Tax Allocation Bonds

In January 2005, the Commission issued 2005 Tax Allocation Bonds Series A & B, in the
aggregate principal amount of $27,940,000 and $9,840,000, respectively. The bonds were
issued for the purpose of refunding the 2001 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Series A &
B. Interest on the bonds is payable semiannually on August ! and February I,

commencing August 1, 2005, at rates ranging from 2.9% to 5.25% per annum.

The annual debt service requirements for the 2005 Tax Allocation Bonds outstanding are

as follows:

Fiscal Year

2009
2010
2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028
2029
2030
2031
2032
2033

Total

Principal

$1,765,000
1,840,000
2,125,000
3,060,000
3,200,000
3,345,000
3,505,000
3,670,000
760,000
790,000
825,000
855,000
890,000
570,000
595,000
780,000
815,000
855,000
555,000
435,000
256,000
200,000
210,060
220,000
235.060

$32.350,000

Interest

1,472,298
1,401,698
1,324,418
1,233,043
1,095,343
948,143
790,928
622,688
444,693
415,813
385,003
352,003
317,803
277,753
253,528
227,943
194,013
153,263
110,513
81,375
58,538
45413
34,913
23,888
12.338

12,277,352
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Total

3,237,298
3,241,698
3,449,418
4,293,043
4,295,343
4,293,143
4,295,928
4,292,088
1,204,693
1,205,813
1,210,003
1,207,003
1,207,803
847,753
848,528
1,007,943
1,009,013
1,008,263
665,513
516,375
308,538
245,413
244 913
243,888
247,338

44,627.352
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Lone-Term Debt, (Continued)

2003 General Obligation Bonds

The City issued $6,000,000 of general obligation bonds, Election of 2002, Series A on
April 24, 2003 to provide funds for a new public library. The bonds mature annually
through August 1, 2028 in the amounts ranging from $120,000 to $425,000 beginning
August I, 2003. The interest of the bonds is payable semi-annually on each February 1
and August I, commencing February 1, 2004. The interest rate of the bonds ranges from
3.70% to 6.10%. The bonds are payable solely from and secured by ad valorem taxes of
all property subject to taxation by the City. The bonds are subject to optional and
mandatory early redemption provisions.

The annual debt service payments for the bonds outstanding are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 145,000 253,647 398,647
2010 155,000 244,497 399,497
2011 165,000 234,740 399,740
2012 175,000 224 658 399,658
2013 185,000 214,089 399,089
2014 200,000 204,870 404,870
2015 210,000 196,775 406,775
2016 220,000 188,280 408,280
2017 230,000 179,580 409,580
2018 240,000 169,830 409,830
2019 255,000 159,525 414,525
2020 265,000 148.673 413,673
2021 280,600 136,851 416,851
2022 295,000 124,235 419,235
2023 310,000 109,970 419,970
2024 330,000 95,571 425,571
2025 345,000 81.011 426,011
2026 365,000 64,635 429,635
2027 385,000 47.290 432,290
2028 405,000 28,475 433,475
2029 425,000 9282 434,282

Total $5.585,000 3.116.484 8,701,484
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Long-Term Debt, (Continued)

2003 A HUD 108 Bond

The City issued $6,900,000 of HUD 108 Bonds, Series A on August 7, 2003 to provide
funds for the construction of a fire station. The bonds mature annually through 2024 in
the amount ranging from $170,000 to $635,000 beginning in 2005, The interest of the

bonds is payable semi-annually on each February 1 and August 1, commencing
February 1, 2004.

The annual debt service payments for the bonds outstanding are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 210,000 314,633 524,633
2010 225,000 306,650 531,650
2011 245,000 297,269 542,269
2012 260,000 286,413 546,413
2013 280,000 274,117 554,117
2014 305,000 260,227 565,227
2015 325,000 244 850 569,850
2016 350,000 227,967 577,967
2017 380,000 209,233 589,233
2018 410,000 188,528 598,528
2019 . 440,000 165,847 605,847
2020 475,000 141,044 616,044
2021 510,000 113,975 623,975
2022 545,000 84,640 629,640
2023 590,000 52,770 642,770
2024 635,000 18.066 653,066

Total $6,185,000 3,186,229 9,371,229
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Morgan Towers Note Payable

The note payable is secured by a deed of trust and is payable to GMAC. The original
note was dated March 1, 1978 in the amount of $5,125,000. Payments of principal and
interest at 6.5% aggregating $30,005 are made monthly with the final payment due
August 1, 2019. The unpaid principal portion of the note at June 30, 2008 was
$2,853,463. The note is insured by HUD and is secured by substantially all property and
equipment of the Morgan Towers Enterprise Fund.

The annual principal payments of the note payable outstanding are as follows:

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2009 $ 179,857 180,203 360,060
2010 191,927 168,133 360,060
2011 204,776 155,284 360,060
2012 218,492 141,568 360,060
2013 233,124 126,936 360,060
2014 248,736 111,324 360,060
2015 265,395 94,665 360,060
2016 283,170 76,890 360,060
2017 302,136 57,924 360,060
2018 322,368 37,692 360,060
2019 343 957 16,103 360,060
2020 59.525 485 60,010
Total $2.853.463 1.167,207 4,020,670

Defeasance of Debt
As of June 30, 2008, the outstanding balances of defeased issues are as follows:

Community Development Commission 2001 Tax Allocation Bonds $35,485,000
Community Development Commission 1998 Tax Allocation Bonds 15,205,000
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Citv Defined Benefit Pension Plan (PERS)

The City of National City contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS). The miscellaneous employees of the City and the safety employees are
part of a single-employer defined benefit pension plan. PERS provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustment, and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiarics. PERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for
participating public entities within the State of California. Copies of PERS’ annual
financial report may be obtained from its executive office at 400 “P” Street, Sacramento,
California 95814.

Miscellaneous and safety participants are required to contribute 8% and 9%, respectively,
of their annual covered salary. The City makes the contributions required of City
employees on their behalf and for their account. Benefit provisions and all other
requirements are established by state statute and City contract with employee bargaining
groups.

Under GASB 27, an employer reports an annual pension cost (APC) equal to the annual
required contribution (ARC) plus an adjustment for the cumulative difference between
the APC and the employer’s actual plan contributions for the year. The cumulative
difference is called the net pension obligation (NPO). The ARC for the period July 1,
2007 to June 30, 2008 has been determined by an actuarial valuation of the plan as of
June 30, 2005. The contribution rate indicated for the period is 26.870% of payroll for
the safety plan and 16.606% of payroll for the miscellaneous plan. In order to calculate
the dollar value of the ARC for inclusion in the financial statements prepared as of June
30, 2008, the contribution rate is muliiplied by the payroll of covered employees that
were paid during the period from July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008.

A summary of principle assumptions and methods used to determine the ARC is shown
below.

City Miscellansous Emplovees Group Safety Employees Group
Valuation Date June 30, 2005 June 30, 2005
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method Level Percent of Payroll Level Percent of Payroll
Average Remaining Period 28 Years as of the Valuation Date 32 Years as of the Valuation Date
Asset Valuation Method 15 Year Smoothed Market 15 Year Smoothed Market

Actuarial Assumptions

Investment Rate of Return  7.75% (net of administrative expenses) 7.75% (net of administrative expenses)
Projected Salary Increases  3.25% to 14.45% depending on Age, 3.25% to 13.15% depending on Age,

Service, and type of employment Service, and type of employment
Inflation 3.00% 3.00%
Payroll Growth 3.25% 3.25%

Individual Salary Growth A merit scale varying by duration of A merit scale varying by duration of
employment cotpled with an assumed employment coupled with an assumed
annual inflation component of 3.00%  annual inflation component of 3.00%
and an annual production growth of  and an annual production growth of
0.25% 0.25%
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Initial unfunded liabilities are amortized over a closed period that depends on the plan’s
date of entry into CalPERS. Subsequent plan amendments are amortized as a level
percentage of pay over a closed 20-year period. Gains and losses that occur in the
operation of the plan are amortized over a rolling 30 year period, which results n an
amortization of 6% of unamortized gains and losses each year. If the plan’s accrued
liability exceeds the actuarial value of plan assets, then the amortization payment on the
total unfunded liability may not be lower than the payment calculated over a 30 year
amortization period.
The Schedule of Funding Progress below shows the recent history of the actuarial value
of assets, actuarial accrued liability, their relationship, and the relationship of the
unfunded accrued liability to payroll. The schedule of funding progress, presented below
presents multiyear information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
Required Supplemeniary Information —-City Miscellaneous Employees Group
Fntry Age Unfunded
Normal Actuarial Liability/ Annaal UAAL
Valuation Accrued Value {Excess Funded Covered Asa% of
Date Liability of Assets Assets) Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/05 § 35,108,736 46,008,085 9,100,651 83.5% 9,887,252 92.0%
6/30/06 58,703,692 50,585,526 8,118,166 86.2% 8,975,788 90.4%
6/30/67 70,797,946 62,442,682 8,355,264 88.2% 11,132,479 75.1%
Required Supplementary Information — Safety Employees Group
Entry Age Unfunded
Normal Actuoarial Liabitity/ Annual UAAL
Valuation Accrued Value (Excess Funded Covered Asa%of
Date Liability of Assets Assets) Status Payroll Payroll
6/30/05 £ 88,177,059 73,335,230 14,841,829 8§3.2% 9,156,066 162.1%
6/30/06 94,936,155 79,004,920 15,931,235 83.2% 8,795,057 181.1%
6/30/07 162,027,654 85,092,163 16,935,491 83.4% 9.431,560 179.6%
Three-Year Trend Information
Annual Pension Cost (Employer Contribution)
Fiscal Percentage of Net Pension
Year Safety Miscellaneous APC Contributed  Obligation
6/30/06 $3,749,262 2,555,731 100% -0-
6/30/07 3,279,137 2,249,428 100% -0-
6/30/08 3,866,043 2,565,047 100% -0-
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Community Development Commission Defined Benefit Pension Plan (PERS)

Plan Description

The Commission contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System
(PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee defined benefit pension plan.
PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. PERS acts as a common investment
and administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California.
Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute and the
Commission’s Resolution. PERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the cost sharing plans
that are administered by PERS. Copies of PERS’ annual financial report may be obtained
by writing to: 400 P Street, Sacramento, California 95814.

Contributions

Participants are required to contribute 8% of their annual covered salary. The
Commission makes the contributions required of the Commission’s employees on their
behalf and for their account. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established
by state statute and Commission contract with employee bargaining groups.

For each of the fiscal years shown below, the Commission has contributed at the
actuarially determined rate provided by PERS” actuaries. Under GASB 27, an employer
reports an annual pension cost (APC) equal to the annual required contribution (ARC)
plus an adjustment for the cumulative difference between the APC and the employer’s
actual plan contributions for the year. The cumulative difference is called the net pension
obligation (NPO). The ARC for the period July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008 has been
determined by an actuarial valuation of the plan as of June 30, 2005. The Commission’s
covered payroll for PERS was $1.394,311 for the year ended June 30, 2008, while the
Commission’s total payroll for all employees was $1,414,275 during the same period. In
order to calculate the dollar value of the ARC for inclusion in financial statements
prepared as of June 30, 2008, the contribution rate is multiplied by the payroll of covered
employees that were paid during the period from July 1, 2007 to June 30, 2008.

Three-Year Trend Information

Annual Pension Cost

Employer Net
Fiscal  Contribution Emplover Percentage  Pension
Year Rate Contribution Contributed Obligation
6/30/06 17.569% $337.857 100% -0~
6/30/07 18.297% 303,606 100% -0-
6/30/08 16.737% 345,583 100% -0-
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Commitments and Contingencies

ahn

The City is presently involved in certain matters of litigation that have arisen in
the normal course of conducting City business. City management believes, based
upon consultation with the City Attorney, that these cases, in the aggregate, are
not expected to result in a material adverse financial impact on the City.
Additionally, City management believes that the City's insurance programs are
sufficient to cover any potential losses should an unfavorable outcome

A. Lawsuits in the Normal Course of Business
materialize.
B. Federal and State Grant Programs

The City participates in several federal and state grant programs. These programs
have been audited by the City's independent auditors in accordance with the
provisions of the federal Single Audit Act, as amended and applicable state
requirements. No cost disallowances were proposed as a result of these audits.
However, these programs are still subject to further examination by the grantors
and the amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting
agencies cannot be determined at this time.

Prior Period Adjustments

The accompanying financial statements include adjustments that resulted in the
restatements of beginning fund balances/net assets. The following summarizes the effect
of the prior period adjustments to beginning fund balance and related government-wide
net assets as of July 1, 2007:

Community
Development Government-
Comimission Other Wide

General  Debt Service Governmental  Statement of
Fund Fund Funds Net Assets

Net assets/ fund balance — beginning of vear,

as previously reported $17,086,279 5,626,852 24,302,256 141,783,056
To record Community Development

Commission pass-through obligations that

refate to prior vears of which a portion

was due to the City’s General Fund 461,221 (513,364) - {52,143)
To remove capital asset and related

accumulated depreciation balances that

were previously recarded in error - - - (1,119,312)
To remove revenues that were previously

recorded in error - - (955,685) (955,685)
To record revenues that relate to prior years - - 392432 392,432
Net assets/ fund balance — beginning of vear,

as restated $17,547,500 3,113,488 23,739,003 140,048,348
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The following funds had fund deficits at June 30, 2008:

Nutrition Program Special Revenue Fund
Library Construction Capital Project Fund

$(1,383,732)
(9922179

The City is in the process of identifying a repayment method of the Nutrition Center
Special Revenue Fund. The deficit fund balance will remain on the books until an agreed
upon method is approved by the City Council of the City of National City. The deficit
balance in the Library Construction Capital Project Fund was due to the State
withholding the contingency funds until the completion of their audit of the sources and
uses of the grant. It is anticipated that the grant will be closed out during fiscal year
2008-2009 and the deficit fund balance will be eliminated.

Expenditures in Excess of Appropriations

The following funds reported excess of expenditures over appropriations for the year

ended June 30, 2008:

Fund

Nutrition Program
Special Revenue Fund

Home Loan Program
Special Revenue Fund

Library Bond
Debt Service Fund

Final
Budget

$852,249

397,190

67

Actual

876,471

188

398,388

Variance with
Final Budget
Positive (Negative)

(24,222)

(188)

(1,198)
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For the vear ended June 30, 2008

Budgetary Information

(2)

Annual budgets are adopted for the general, special revenue, debt service, and capital
projects funds. All unencumbered appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year.
Encumbered appropriations are carried forward in the subsequent fiscal year.

The City Manager is authorized to transfer budgeted amounts within a fund. However,
any revisions that increase the total budget of any fund must be approved by the City
Council. All necessary supplemental appropriations were adopted by the City Council
and are included in the reported data. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008,
supplemental appropriations requiring City Council approval were insignificant. The
legal level of control for appropriations is exercised at the fund level.

Encumbrance accounting 1s emploved in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g..
purchase orders, contracts) outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund
balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will
be honored during the subsequent year.

The following is the budget comparison schedules for the General Fund and all major
special revenue funds.

Reguired Disclosures

The following funds had fund deficits at June 30, 2008:

Nutrition Program Special Revenue Fund $(1,383,732)
Library Construction Capital Project Fund (992,217)

The following funds reported excess of expenditures over appropriations for the year
ended June 30, 2608:

Variance with

Final Final Budget
Fund Budget Actual Positive (Negative)

Nutrition Program
Special Revenue Fund $852,249 876,471 (24,222)
Home Loan Program
Special Revenue Fund - 188 (188)
Library Bond
Debt Service Fund 397,190 398,388 (1,198)
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Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008
Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 33,078,092 33,078,092 33,638,924 560,832
Licenses and permits 764,267 764,267 799,452 35,185
Fines and forfeitures 1,187,597 1,187,597 1,084,647 (102,950)
Interest and rents 1,833,059 1,833,059 2,168,962 335,903
Intergovernmental 081,349 981,349 802,557 (178,792)
Charges for services 530,598 530,598 414,298 (116,300)
Other revenues 53,430 53,430 152,148 08,718
Total revenues 38,428,392 38,428,392 39,060,988 632,596
Expenditures:
Current;
General government 4,135,621 4,135,621 3,215,981 919,640
Public safety , 26,741,210 26,741,210 25,393,406 1,347,804
Transportation 2,985,197 2,985,197 2,678,673 306,524
Community development 1,115,081 1,115,081 1,128,843 (13,762
Culture and leisure 1,752,762 1,752,762 1,527,397 225,365
Capital outlay 2,104,656 2,104,656 364,946 1,739,710
Debt service:
Principal 196,709 196,709 196,709 -
Interest and fiscal charges 66,596 66,596 66,596 -
Total expenditures 39,097,832 39,097,832 34,572,551 4,525,281
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures {669,440) {669,440) 4,488 437 5,157,877
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 700,600 700,000 700,000 -
Transfers out {2,709,705) (2,709,705} {2,709,705) -
Total other financing sources (uses) (2,009,705) {2,009,705) (2.009,705) -
Net change in fund balances (2,679,145 (2,679,145) 2,478,732 5,157,877

Fund balance, beginning of year, as restated 17,547,500 17,547,500 17,547,500 -

Fund balance, end of year $ 14,868,355 14,868,355 20,026,232 5,157,877
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Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Qriginal Final Amounts {(Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 8,160,000 8,160,000 9,427,480 1,267,480
Other revenues 945,116 - 41,269 41,269
Total revenues 9,105,116 8,160,000 0,468,749 1,308,746
Expenditures:
Current:
Community development 8,145,954 8,145,954 8,115,750 30,204
Capital outlay 2,500 2,500 4,923 (2,423)
Total expenditures 8,148,454 8,148,454 8,120,673 27,781
Net change in fund balances 056,662 11,546 1,348,076 1,336,530
Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year {192,633) (192,633) (192,633) -
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $ 764,029 (181,087) 1,155,443 1,336,530
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Other Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:

Licenses and permits $ 13,000 13,000 1,780 (11,220)

Fines and forfeitures 94,934 94,934 67,590 (27,344)

Interest and rents 52,535 52,535 77,864 25,329

Intergovernmental 10,252,321 10,252,321 7,646,053 (2,606,268)

Charges for services 604,306 604,306 606,785 2,479

Other revenues 454,090 454,090 317,708 {136,382)
Total revenues 11,471,186 11,471,186 8,717,780 (2,753,406)

Expenditures:
Current:
General government 2,076,594 2,076,594 2,137,334 (60,740}
Public safety 2,607,448 2,607,448 1,073,506 1,533,942
Community development 2,282,506 2,282,506 1,098,394 1,184,112
Health 226,697 226,697 131,326 95,371
Culture and leisure 3,144,150 3,144,150 2,221,899 922,251
Capital outlay 4,947,603 4,947,603 475,279 4,472,324
Debt service:
Principal 195,000 195,000 195,000 -
Interest and fiscal charges 330,505 330,505 330,505 -
Total expenditures 15,810,503 15,810,503 7,663,243 8,147,260
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures (4,339,317) {4,339,317) 1,054,537 5,393,854
Other financing sources:

Transfers in 830,200 830,200 986,006 155,806
Total other financing sources 830,200 830,200 986,006 155,806
Net change in fund balances (3,509,117 (3,509,117) 2,040,543 5,549,660

Fund balance, beginning of year 4,812,570 4,812,570 4,812,570 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,303,453 1,303,453 6,853,113 5,549,660
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Nutrition Program Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Community development

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfers in

Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balances
Fund balance (deficit), beginning of year

Fund balance (deficit), end of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 299,000 299,000 288,359 (10,641)
218,006 218,006 222,445 4,439
517,006 517,006 510,804 (6,202)
852,249 852,249 876,471 (24,222)
852,249 852,249 876,471 (24,222)
(335,243) {335,243) (365,667) (30,424)
375,912 375,912 375,912 -
375,912 375,912 375912 -
40,669 40,669 10,245 (30,424)
(1,393,977) (1,393,977) {1,393,977) -
$ (1,353,308) (1,353,308) {1,383,732) (30,424)
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Sewer Service Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Revenues:
Charges for services
Other revenues

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Health

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balances
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 7,127,000 7,127,000 7,426,730 299,730
500 500 - (500)
7,127,500 7,127,500 7,426,730 299,230
13,994,083 13,994,083 7,295,243 6,698,840
13,994,083 13,994,083 7,295,243 6,698,840
(6,866,583) (6,866,583) 131,487 6,998,070
13,689,474 13,689,474 13,689,474 -
$ 6,822,891 6,822,891 13,820,961 6,998,070
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:

General Capital Qutlay Fund

This fund is used to account for funds set aside from the proceeds of sale of and rental from
surplus real property for the City's five-year capital improvement program.

Library Fund

This fund is used to account for the operation of the National City Library.
Parks Maintenance Fund

This fund is used to account for operating and maintaining the City's parks.
Library Capital Outlay Fund

This fund is used to account for revenues from real property transfer taxes set aside to finance
capital outlay and capital improvement expenditures of the National City Library.

Gas Tax Fund

This fund is used to account for the City's share of state gas tax revenue restricted for street
improvement and maintenance.

Parks and Recreation Capital Outlay Fund

This fund is used to account for revenues from dwelling fees set aside for capital improvement
expenditures of the Parks and Recreation Department,

Community Development Block Grant Fund

This fund is used to account for federal funds received from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development — Community Development Block Program.

Home Loan Program Fund

This fund is used to account for federal funds received from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development Home Loan Program.

Home Program Fund

This fund is used to account for federal funds received from the U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development Home Program.

Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund

This fund is used to account for the Community Development Commission 20% Set Aside.
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, (CONTINUED)

Asset Forfeiture Fund

This fund is used to account for the receipt and expenditure of funds provided by the federal
government’s asset seizure fund to be used exclusively for law enforcement purposes.

Parking Authority Fund

This fund is used to account for the financing and construction of the Plaza Bonita Parking
Facility.

DEBT SERVICE FUND:

National City Joint Powers Financing Authority Fund

This fund is used to account for funds maintained by the trustee bank solely for the purpose of
paying, when due and payable, the principal of or interest on the lease revenue bonds and lease
revenue refunding bonds issued by the National City Joint Powers Financing Authority.

Library Bond Debt Service Fund

This fund is used to account for debt service of the Library.

CAPITAL PROTECTS FUNDS:

Proposition “A” Capital Projects Fund

This fund is used to account for the City’s allocation of the 2% transactions and use tax imposed
by Proposition “A” (San Diego Transportation Improvement Program Ordinance} passed by the
voters in San Diego County in November 1987.

STP Locai/TransNet Highway Fund

This fund is used to account for funds received from the San Diego Association of Governments
(“SANDAG”) for TransNet projects.

State-Local Partnership Fund

This fund is used to account for the receipt and expenditures of funds provided by the State
under the State-Local Transportation Partnership Program.

Traffic Congestion Relief Fund

This fund is used for the maintenance, rehabilitation and reconstruction of transportation related
to Capital Projects; specifically pertaining to local streets and roads.

Fire Construction Project Capital Projects Fund

This fund is used to account for activities for fire department construction.
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet

June 30, 2008
Special Revenue Funds
General Library Park and
Capital Parks Capital Recreation
Qutlay Library Maintenance Outlay Gas Tax Capital Outlay
ASSETS
Cash and investments § 1,032,627 168,264 119,017 620,945 152,032 871,796
Restricted cash and investments with fiscal agent - - - - - -
Accounts receivable - - - 455 - 32,592
Property tax receivabie - - - - - -
Interest receivable - - - - 1,095 -
e from other funds - 321 - - - “
Due from other governmental entitics - 3,136 3,654 8,721 377.850 -
L.and held for resale - . - - R .
Contracts, notes and loans receivable - - - - - -
Total assets § 1,032,627 171,721 122,671 630,121 530,977 904,388
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ - 2,441 8,831 5,042 6,104 .
Salaries payable - 30,535 23,272 - 3,516 -
Pue to other funds - 9,687 - - - -
Deflerred revenue - - - . . -
Total liabilities - 42,663 32,103 5,042 9.620 -
Fund balances:
Reserved:
Encumbrances - - - - 111,967 1,231
Land held for resale - - - - - -
Contracts, loans, notes receivable - - - - - -
Debt service - - - - - -
Total reserved - - - - 111,947 1,231
Unreserved, designated:
Continuing appropriations - - - - 227,348 113,000
Fotal reserved, designated - - - - 227,348 113.00G
Unreserved, undesignated:
Special revenue funds 1,032,627 129,058 90,568 625,079 182,042 790,157
Capital projects funds - - - - - -
Total fund balances 1,032,627 129,058 90,568 625,079 521,357 004,388
Total liabilities and fund balances $ 1,032,627 171,721 122,671 630,121 530,977 904,388
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Debt

Special Revenue Funds Service
Community Home Low and Joint Powers
Development Loan HOME Moderate Income Asset Parking Financing
Block Grant Program Program Housing Program Forfeiture Authority Authority
416,005 3,064,944 2,104,827 4,901,812 574,081 - -
- - - - - - 73
- - - - 352 - -
- - - 75,958 - - -
- - - - 4,136 - -
178,101 - - 18,090 - - -
- . 1,765,802 360,000 - - -
- 322,958 703,107 3,861,809 - - -
594,106 3,387,502 4,515,736 9,217,669 578,569 - 73
2,881 - - 101,288 - - -
14,025 - - - - - -
111,989 - - - - - -
128,895 - - 101,288 - - -
- - - - 177,164 - -
- - 1,705,802 360,000 - - -
- 322,958 705,107 3,861,809 - - -
- - - - - - 73
- 322,938 2,410,509 4,221,809 177,164 - 73
465,211 3,004,944 2,104,827 4,894 572 401,405 - -
465,211 3,387,902 4,515,736 9,116,381 578,569 - 73
594,106 3,387,902 4,515,736 9,217,669 578,569 - 73
{Continucd)
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ASSETS

Cash and investments

Restricted cash and investments with fiseal agent

Accounts receivabie

Property tax receivable

Interest receivable

BPue from other funds

Due from other governmental entities
Land held for resale

Contracts, notes and loans receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Salaries payable
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities
Fund balances:
Reserved:
Encumbrances
Land held for resale
Contracts, foans, notes receivable
Debt service

Total reserved

Unreserved, designated:
Continuing appropriations

Total reserved, designated

Usreserved, undesignated:
Special reverme funds
Capital projects funds

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet, Continued

June 30, 2008

Debt
Service Capital Projects Funds
STP Local/ State- Traffic Fire Total Other
Library TransNet Local Congestion  Construction  Governmental
Bonds Proposition A Highway  Partnership Relief Project Funds
662,989 3,288,541 386,099 116,868 153,619 408,173 19,044,639
- - - - - - 73
- - - - - - 33,399
- - - - - - 75,958
- 23,689 2,781 841 - - 32,542
- 397,285 60,774 - - - 458,380
463 - - - - - 590,015
- - - - - - 2,063,802
- - - - - - 4,889,874
¥ 663,452 3,709,515 449,654 117,769 155,619 408,173 27,190,682
$ . 13,573 20,500 - 20,000 - 180,660
- 7,269 - - - - 64,592
- 60,774 397,285 - - - 481,771
- 4,513 - 95,493 - - 211,995
- 86,129 417,785 95,493 20,000 - 939,018
- 407189 428,436 - - - 1,125,987
- - - - - - 2,065,802
- . - - - - 4,889,874
663,452 - - - - - 663,525
663,452 407,189 428,436 - - - 8,745,188
- 507,538 - - - - §47.886
- 507,538 - - - - 847.886
- - - - - - 13,780,490
- 2,708,659 (396,567} 22,216 135,619 408,173 2,878,100
663,452 3,623,386 31,869 22,216 135,619 408,173 26,251,664
$ 663452 3,709,515 449,654 117,709 155,619 408,173 27,190,682
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Year ended June 30, 2008

Special Revenue Funds

(eneral
Capital
Ouilay

Library

Parks
Mainienance

Library
Capital
Outlay

Gas Tax

Park and
Recreation
Capital OQutlay

Revenues:
Taxes $ -
Fines and forfeitures -
Interest and rents -
Intergovernmental -
Charges for services -
Other revenues -

659,872

6,158

776,094

88,634

23,473

32,104
1,137,214

269,267

Total revenues -

666,030

776,094

112,107

1,169,318

269,267

Expenditures:

Current:
General government -
Public safety -
Transportation -
Community development -
Culture and leisure -

Capital outiay -

Debt service:
Principal -
Inferest and fiscal charges -

1,531,700

116,560

770,818

Total expenditures -

1,531,700

983.863

116,560

770,818

12,000

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures -

(865,670)

(207,769)

(4,453)

398,500

257,267

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in -
Transfers out -

1,006,686
(11,938)

298,337

(700,009)

Total other financing sources (uses) -

994,728

298,337

(700,000)

Net change in fund balances -

Fund balances, beginning,
of year, as restated 1,032,627

129,058

90,568

(4.453)

629,532

(301,500)

822,857

257,267

647,121

Fund balances, end of year $ 1,032,627

129,058

90,568

625,079

521,357

904,388
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Special Revenue Funds

Debt
Service

Community Home Low and 7 Joint Powers
Development Loan HOME Moderate Income Asset Parking Financing
Block Grant Program Program Housing Program _ Forfeiture Authority Authority
- - - 2,541,607 - - -
- - - - 170,110 - -
- - - 7,947 22,181 - 1,143
1,147,104 - 524,437 - - - 486,451
- 16,798 - - - - -
1,147,104 16,798 524,437 2,949,554 192,261 - 487,594
. . - - 25,134 . .
1,073,965 188 3,528 280,252 - - -
- - - - 41,613 - .
- - - - . . 360,000
- - - v - - 187,799
1,073,965 188 3,528 280,252 66,747 - 487,799
713,139 16,610 520,509 2,669,302 125,544 - (205)
- - - (814.215) - - -
- - - (814,215) - - -
73,139 16,610 520,909 1,855,087 125,544 - {203)
392,072 3,371,292 3,994,827 7,261,294 453,025 - 278
465211 3,387,902 4,515,736 9,116,381 578,569 - 73
(Continued)

33



CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances, Continued

Year ended June 30, 2008

Debt
Service Capital Projects Funds
STP Local/ State- Traffic Fire Total Other
Library TransNet Local Congestion  Construction  Governmental
Bonds Proposition A Highway  Partnership Relief Project Funds
Revenues:
Taxes 3 - - - - - - 4,466,207
Fines and forfeitures - - - “ - - 176,110
Interest and rents - 121,400 35318 4,493 - 7.384 501,237
Intergovernmental - 357,194 96,005 - - - 3,754,363
Charges for services - - - - - - 23,473
Other revenues 481,882 - - - - - 498,680
Tolal revenues 481,882 478,594 131,323 4,493 - 7,384 9,414,270
Expenditures:
Current:
General government 1,198 “ - - - - 1,198
Public safety - - - - - 26,891 62,025
Transportation - - - - 306,807 - 1,077,625
Community development - - - - - - 1,357,933
Culture and leisure - - - - - - 2,527,563
Capital outlay - 416,990 193,963 - - - 769,126
Debi service:
Principal 135,000 - - - - - 435,000
Interest and fiscal charges 262,190 - - - - - 449,989
Total expenditures 398,388 416,990 193,963 - 306,807 36,891 6,680,459
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures 83,494 61,604 {62.640) 4,493 €306,807) (29,507 2,733,811
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in - - - - - - 1,305,023
Transfers out - - - - - - (1,526,173)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - - - - (221,150}
Net change in fund balances 83,494 61,604 (62,640) 4,493 (306,807} (29,567) 2,512,661
Fund balances, beginning,
of year, as restated 576,958 3,561,782 94,509 17,723 442,426 437 680 23,739,003
Fund balances, end of year $ 663,452 3,623,386 31,869 22,216 135,619 408,173 26,251,664
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY

General Capital Outlay Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Expenditures:

Capital outlay $ . - - -
Total expenditures - - - -
Net change in fund balances - - - -

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,032,627 1,032,627 1,032,627 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,032,627 1,032,627 1,032,627 -
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Library Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Revenues:
Taxes
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Culture and leisure

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 744,104 744,104 659,872 (84,232)
6,000 6,000 6,158 158
750,104 750,104 666,030 (84,074)
1,756,790 1,756,790 1,531,700 225,090
1,756,790 1,756,790 1,531,700 225,090
{1,006,686) (1,006,686} (865,670) 141,016
1,006,686 1,006,686 1,006,686 -
- - (11,958) (11,958)
1,006,686 1,006,686 994,728 (11,958}
- - 129,058 129,058
$ - - 129,058 129,058
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Parks Maintenance Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:

Taxes $ 787.034 787.034 776.094 (10.940)

Total revenues 787,034 787,034 776,094 (10,940)
Expenditures:
Current;
Culture and leisure 1,008,983 1,008,983 983,863 25,120
Total expenditures 1,008,983 1,008,983 983,863 25,120
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (221,949) (221,949) (207,769) 14,180
Other financing sources:

Transfers in 298,337 298,337 268,337 -
Total other financing sources 298,337 208,337 298,337 -
Net change in fund balances 76,388 76,388 90,568 14,180

Fund balance, beginning of year - - - -
Fund balance, end of year $ 76,388 76,388 90,568 14,180
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Library Capital Outlay Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:

Taxes $ 100,000 106,000 88,634 (11,366)

Charges for services 10,000 10,000 23,473 13,473
Total revenues 110,000 110,000 112,107 2,107

Expenditures:

Capital outlay 507,632 507,632 116,560 391,072
Total expenditures 507,632 507,632 116,560 361,072
Net change in fund balances (397,632) (397,632) (4,453) 393,179

Fund balance, beginning of year 629,532 629,532 629,532 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 231,900 231,900 625,079 393,179
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Revenues:
Interest and rents
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Transportation

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance (deficit), end of year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 38,500 38,500 32,104 (6,396)
1,183,500 1,183,500 1,137,214 (46,286)
1,222,000 1,222,000 1,169,318 (52,682)
1,861,605 1,861,605 770,818 1,090,787
1,861,605 1,861,605 770,818 1,090,787
{639,605) (639,605) 398,500 1,038,105
(700,000) (700,000) (700,000) -
(700,000} {700,000) (700,000) -
(1,339,605) (1,339,605) (301,500) 1,038,105
822,857 822,857 822,857 -
$ (516,748) (516,748) 521,357 1,038,105
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Park and Recreation Capital Outlay Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues: . '
Interest and rents $ 150,000 150,000 269,267 119,267
Total revenues - 150,000 130,000 269,267 119,267
Expenditures:
Current:
Culture and leisure 126,231 126,231 12,000 114,231
Total expenditures 126,231 126,231 12,000 114,231
Net change in fund balances 23,769 23,769 257,267 233,498
Fund balance, beginning of vear 647,121 647,121 647,121 -
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $ 670,890 670,890 904,388 233,498
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY

Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Community development

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balances
Fund balance, beginning of vear

Fund balance (deficit), end of vear

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 1,135,220 1,135,220 1,147,104 11,884
1,135,220 1,135,220 1,147,104 11,884
2,392 481 2,392,481 1,073,965 1,318,516
2,392 481 2,392,481 1,073,965 1,318,516
(1,257,261) (1,257,261} 73,139 1,330,400
392,072 392,072 392,072 -
$ (865,189) (865,189) 465,211 1,330,400
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Home Loan Program Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Negative)
Revenues:
Other revenues $ 17,000 . 16,798 16,798
Total revenues 17,000 - 16,798 16,798
Expenditures:
Current:
Community development - - 188 (188)
Total expenditures - - 188 {188)
Net change in fund balances 17,000 - 16,610 16,610
Fund balance, beginning of year 3,371,292 3,371,292 3,371,252 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 3,388,292 3,371,292 3,387,502 16,610

92



CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
HOME Program Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Revenues:
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Community development

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balances
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 599.067 599,067 524.437 (74.630)
599,067 599,067 524,437 (74,630)
593.067 593.067 3,528 589.539
593,067 593,067 3,528 589,539
6,000 6,000 520,909 514,909
3,994,827 3,994,827 3,994,827 -
$ 4,000,827 4,000,827 4,515,736 514,909
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY

Low and Moderate Income Housing Program Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Fxpenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Revenues:
Taxes
Interest and renis

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Community development

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

Variance with

Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 2,848,366 2,848,366 2,941,607 93,241
10,775 10,775 7.947 (2.828)
2,859,141 2,859,141 2,949,554 90,413
852,500 852,500 280,252 572,248
852,500 852,500 280,252 572,248
2,000,641 2,006,641 2,669,302 662,601
(832,964) (832,964) (814,215) 18,749
(832.964) (832,964) (814,215) 18,749
1,173,677 1,173,677 1,855,087 681,410

7,261,294 7,261,294 7,261,294 -
$ 8,434,971 8,434,971 9,116,381 681,410
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Asset Forfeiture Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Revenues:
Fines and forfeitures
Interest and rents

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety
Capital outlay

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balances
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

FFor the year ended June 30, 2008

Vartance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 178,550 178,550 170,110 (8,440)

90,000 90,000 22,181 (67,819)

268,550 268,550 192,261 (76,259)

53,295 53,295 25,134 28,161

214,566 214,566 41,613 172,953

267,861 267,861 66,747 201,114

689 689 125,544 124,855

453,025 453,025 453,025 -

$ 453,714 453,714 578,569 124,855
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Joint Powers Financing Authority Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Revenues:
Interest and rents
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Debt service
Principal
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures
Net change in fund balances
Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of year

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ 1,000 1,000 1,143 143
488,000 488,000 486,451 (1,549)
489,000 489,000 487,594 (1,406)
300,000 300,000 300,000 -
187.799 187,799 187,799 -
487,799 487,799 487,799 -
1,201 1,201 (205) (1,406}
278 278 278 -
$ 1,479 1,479 73 (1,406)
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Library Bond Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008
Variance with
Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Other revenues $ 400,000 400,000 481,882 81,882
Total revenues 400,000 400,000 481,882 81,882
Expenditures:
Current:
General government - - 1,198 (1,198)
Debt service
Principal 135,000 135,000 135,000 -
Interest and fiscal charges 262,190 262,190 262,190 -
Total expenditures 397,190 397,190 398,388 (1,198)
Net change in fund balances 2,810 2,810 83,494 80,684
Fund balance, beginning of year 579,958 379,958 579,958 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 582,768 582,768 663,452 80,684
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Proposition A Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:

Interest and rents $ 32,700 32,700 121,400 88,700

Intergovernmental 384,000 384,000 357,194 (26,806)
Total revenues 416,700 416,700 478,594 61,894

Expenditures:

Capital outlay 2,018,603 2,018,605 416,990 1,601,615
Total expenditures 2,018,605 2,018,605 416,990 1,601,615
Net change in fund balances (1,601,905) (1,601,905) 61,604 1,663,509

Fund balance, beginning of year, as restated 3,561,782 3,561,782 3,561,782 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 1,959,877 1,959,877 3,623,386 1,663,509
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
STP Local/TransNet Highway Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:

Interest and rents $ - - 35,318 35,318

Intergovernmental - - 96,005 96,005
Total revenues - - 131,323 131,323

Expenditures:

Capital outlay 1,311,968 1,311,968 193,963 1,118,005
Total expenditures 1,311,968 1,311,968 193,963 1,118,005
Net change in fund balances (1,311,968) (1,311,968) (62,640) 1,249,328

Fund balance, beginning of year, as restated 94,509 94,509 94,509 -
Fund balance (deficit), end of year $ (1,217.459) (1,217,459} 31,869 1,249,328
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY

State - Local Partnership Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:

Interest and rents $ - - 4,493 4,493
Total revenues - - 4,493 4,493
Net change in fund balances - - 4,493 4,493

Fund balance, beginning of year 17,723 17,723 17,723 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 17,723 17,723 22,216 4,493
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Traffic Congestion Relief Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
[ntergovernmental $ 455,749 455,749 - (455,749}
Total revenues 455,749 455,749 - (455,749)
Expenditures:
Current:
Transportation 707,613 707,613 306,807 400,806
Total expenditures 707,613 707,613 306,807 400,806
Net change in fund balances (251,864) (251,864) (306,807) (54,943)
Fund balance, beginning of year 442,426 442 426 442 426 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 190,562 190,562 135,619 (54,943)
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Fire Construction Capital Projects Fund

Schedule of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2008
Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues:
Interest and rents $ - - 7,384 7.384
Total reveniues - - 7,384 7,384
Expenditures:
Current:
Public safety 313,359 313,359 36,891 276,468
Total expenditures 313,359 313,359 36,891 276,468
Net change in fund balances (313,359) (313,359) (29,507) 283,852
Fund balance, beginning of year 437,680 437,680 437,680 -
Fund balance, end of year $ 124,321 124,321 408,173 283,852
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

Facilities Maintenance Fund

This fund is used to account for the costs of maintaining all City-owned buildings in a clean,
safe, workable, and pleasant condition.

Liability Insurance Fund

This fund is used to account for the costs of maintaining the City’s workers’ compensation and
liability insurance programs.

General Services Fund

This fund is used to account for the costs of maintaining the City’s centralized procurement
system providing supplies, equipment, and certain services for all City departments.

Information Systems Maintenance Fund

This fund is used to account for the costs of maintaining the City’s computer-related information
systems.

Office Equipment Depreciation Fund

This fund is used to account for the costs to replace City office equipment.

Telecommunications Revolving Fund

This fund is used to account for the costs of maintaining the City’s telecommunications system.
General Accounting Services Fund

This fund is used to account for the costs of general accounting services.

Motor Vehicle Services Fund

This fund is used to account fort the City’s costs of preventative maintenance and repairs for all
City vehicles including police, fire, general administrative, park, sewer and public works
equipment.

Equipment Replacement Reserve Fund

This fund is used to account for the costs to replace City general equipment.

Unemployment Insurance Reserve Fund

This fund is used to account for a reserve for unemployment insurance.
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Internal Service Funds

June 30, 2008
information Office
Facilities Liability General Systems Equipment
Maintenance Insurance Services Mainienance Depreciation
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and investmenis $ 320,08 6,474,885 276,793 950,680 2,153,428
Accounts recetvable - 2,000 - 72,231 -
Inventories - - 27,903 - “
Prepaid items and deposits - - - 47,000 -
Total current assets 320,086 6,476,885 304,656 1,118 911 2,153,428
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:
Depreciable assets, net of
accumutated depreciation - - - 62,304 182,998
Total capital assets - - - 62,304 182,998
Total noncurrent assets - - - 62,304 182,998
Total assets 320,086 6,476,885 304,696 1,181,215 2,336,426
LIABILITIES
Current liabilitics:
Accounts pavable and accrued liabilities 131,717 138,303 11,790 18,893 93,925
Salaries payable 20,084 3,642 6,342 4,294 -
Due to other funds 3,000 - - - -
Compensated absences 42,604 8,973 25,413 . -
Self-insurance ¢laims payable -
due within one year - 1,930,600 - - -
T'otal current liabilities 199,405 2,080,918 43,545 23,187 93,925
Nencurrent iiabilities:
Self-insurance claims payable -
due in mote than one year - 2,578,000 . - -
Total liabiiitics 199,405 4,658,918 43,545 23,187 93,925
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assefs, net of related debt - - - 62,304 182,998
Unrestricted 120,681 1,817,967 261,151 1,095,724 2,059,503
Total net assets 5 120,681 1,817,967 261,151 1,158,028 2,242 501
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General Motor Equipment  Unemployment
Telecommunications Accounting Vehicle Replacement Insurance
Revolving Services Services Reserve Reserve Total
789,947 638,999 621,264 709,263 201,532 13,185,877
- - . - - 74.231
- - - - - 27,903
- - - - - 47,000
789,947 638,999 621,264 709,263 201,332 13,335,011
9.365 - 1,357,513 - - 1,612,180
9,365 - 1,357,513 - - 1,612,180
9.363 - 1,357,513 - - 1,612,180
799,312 638,999 1,978,777 709,263 201,532 14,947,191
18,851 10,589 67,682 97,118 140 589,008
2,706 15,445 10,862 - . 63,375
- - . - - 5,000
. 77,222 28,485 . 182,697
- . - - 1,930,060
21,557 103,256 107,029 S7,118 140 2,770,680
- - - - - 2,578,000
21,357 103,256 107,029 97,118 140 5,348,080
9,363 - 1,357,513 - - 1,612,180
768,390 535,743 514,233 612,143 201,392 7.986,931
771,755 535,743 1,871,748 612,145 201,392 9,599,111
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

Operating revenues:
Services charges
Other revenues

Total operating revenues
Operaiing expenses:
Personnel services

Maintenance and operations
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Transfers in
Transfers out

Change in nef assets
Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of year

Internal Service Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Information Office
Facilitics Liability General Systems Equipment

Maintenance Insurance Services Maintenance Depreciation
2,099,052 2,730,536 432,950 761,615 425,624

- 53,646 - - -
2,099,052 2,784,182 432,950 761,615 425,624

682,091 132,919 172,549 141,364 -
1,699,493 2,720,139 176,771 433,761 218,651
- - - 43,301 23,036
2,381,384 2,853,058 349,320 618,426 241,687
(282,532) {68,876) 83,630 143,189 183,937
(282,532) (68,876) 83.630 143,189 183,937
403,213 1,886,843 177,521 1,014,839 2,058,564
120,681 1,817,967 261,151 1,158,028 2,242 501
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General Maotor Equipment Unemployment
Telecommunications Accounting Vehicle Replacement Insurance
Revolving Services Services Reserve Reserve Total

397,816 863,891 1,577,339 - 38,820 9,329,643

- - . - - 53,646

397,816 865,891 1,577,339 - 38.820 9,383,289

84,775 571,251 424,778 - - 2,209,727

246,701 184,786 896,715 167,855 28,604 6,712,876

7,917 - 270,746 - - 345,000

339,393 756,037 1,592,239 107,855 28,604 9,267,603

58,423 109,854 (14,900) (107,853) 10,816 115,686

- - 95,000 - - 93,000
{143,771) - - - - (143,771)
(85,348) 109.854 80,100 (107.855) 16,816 66,915
863,103 425,889 1,791,648 720,000 190,576 9,532,196
777,755 335,743 1,871,748 612,145 201,392 9,569,111
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Cagh received from customers/other funds
Cash payments to suppliers
Cash payments for general and administrative

Net cash provided (used) by
operating activities

Cash flows from capitai and related financing
activifies:
Acquisition or disposal of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital
and related financing activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:

Cash received from other funds
Cash paid to other funds

Net cash provided {used) by non-capital
financing activities

Net increase {decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and investments:
Beginning of year
End of year

Cash flows from operating activitics:
Operating income {loss}
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in current assets and liabilities:
Agccounis receivable
Inventories
Prepaid items and deposits
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Safaries pavable
Compensated absences
Self-insurance claims payable

Total adjustments

Net cash provided (used) by
operating activitics

CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Internal Service Funds
For the vear ended June 30, 2008

Information Office
Facilities Liability General Systems Equipment
Maintenance insurance Services Mainienance Depreciation
2,104,052 2,782,182 432,950 761,615 425,624
(1,617,511} (2,248,372) (177.461) (463.237) (136,849)
(660,976 (126.084) (168,556} (139,187) -
(174.435) 407,726 86,933 159,191 288,775
. - - - (164,433)
- - - - {104,433)
15,942 - - - -
- - (1,957) (32,478) (35,783)
15,942 - (1,957 {32,478} (35,783}
{158,493) 407,726 84,976 126,713 148,559
478,576 6,067,159 191,817 872,967 2,004,869
b 320,086 6,474,885 276,793 999,680 2,153,428
3 (282,532 {68,876) 83,630 143,189 183,937
- - - 43,301 23,036
5,000 (2,000) - . -
- . (1,278) - -
- - - (41,7813 -
81,982 108,767 588 12,305 81,802
10,312 817 2,650 2,177 -
10,803 6,018 1,303 - -
- 363,600 - - -
108,097 476,602 3,303 16,002 104,838
$ (174,435 407,726 86,933 159,191 288,775
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General Muotor Equipment Unempleyment
Telecommuntcations Accounting Vehicle Replacement Insurance
Revolving Services Services Reserve Reserve Total
397,816 863,891 1,577,33% - 38,820 9,386,289
(232,786) (174,706) (911,049) (10,757} (27,8643 (6,000,572)
{83,178) {524,807y (413.773) - - (2,116,561)
81,852 166,378 252,517 (10,737) 10,956 1,265,156
- - {189,008) - - (293,441)
- - {185,008) - - (293,441}
800 - 102,550 - - 119,292
{148,036} - - - - (218,254}
{147,236) - 102,550 - - {98,962}
(65,384) 166,378 166,059 (10,7373 10,956 876,753
855,331 472,623 455,208 720,000 190,576 12,309,124
789,947 638,599 621,264 709,263 201,532 13,185,877
38,423 109,854 {14,900) (107,855) 10,816 115,686
7917 - 270,746 - - 345,000
} - - - 3,000
- . - - - (1.278)
- - - . - (41,781
13,915 10,080 (14,334 97,118 140 392,363
1,597 7,754 5,404 - - 30,751
- 38,690 5,601 - - 62,415
- - - - - 363,600
23,429 56,524 267417 97,118 140 1,153,470
81,852 166,378 252,517 (10,737) 10,956 1,269,156
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

AGENCY FUNDS:

Cobra Insurance Fund

This fund is used to account for amounts collected by the City from retirees to pay their health
insurance premiums.

Miscellaneous Deposits Fund

This fund is used to account for miscellaneous deposits collected by the City.
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY

Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

Agency Funds

For the year ended June 30, 2008

Balance Balance
July 1,2007  Additions Deletions June 30, 2008
COBRA INSURANCE FUND
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 3,990 105,209 105,409 3,790
Total assets 3 3,990 105,209 105,409 3,790
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 3,990 210,741 210,941 3,790
Total liabilities $ 3,990 210,741 210,941 3,790
Balance Balance
July 1, 2007 Additions Deletions June 30, 2008
MISCELLANEOQUS DEPOSITS FUND
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 834,500 177,584 364,893 647,161
Total assets $ 834,500 177,584 364,893 647,191
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 834,500 507.419 694,728 647,191
Total habilities $ 834,500 507,419 694,728 647,191
Balance Balance
July 1,2007  Additions Deletions June 30, 2008
TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS
Assets:
Cash and investments $ 838,490 282,793 470,302 650,981
Total assets $ 838,490 282,793 470,302 650,981
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 838,490 718,160 905,669 650,981
Total liabilities $ 838,490 718,160 905,669 650,981
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OTHER INFORMATION



CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Net Assets By Compohent”
Last Six Fiscal Years
{accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2005
Governmental Activities:
invested in-Cabilal gssets,
nat of related debt 50,288.232 92 988 068 104,117,834
Restricied 26,694,109 49,185,548 44,125,574
Unrestricted 44 .381.478 (19,947 768) (18,088,821
Totai governmental activities netasssats 121283817 122 228,775 127,154,592
Business-type Activities:
invested in Capital assets,
net of related debt 12,481,289 11,844 051 11,204,491
Restricted 1,913,183 1,167,358 2430808
Unrastricted (241,387} 1,142,236 -
Total businass-type activities net assetfs 14,153,065 14,143,848 13,844,299
Primary Govermnrient;
Invested in Capital assets,
net of related debt 62,749,521 104 833,048 142 322,330
Restriciad 28 6807 272 50,342 608 46 565 387
Unrestricted 44 090,089 {18.805.532) (18,088,821}
Total primary government net assets 135,446,882 136,370 422 140,798 891

Noted: * The City of National City implemented GASE 34 for the pericd ended June 30, 2003
infermation prior to the implementation is not available.

Source: City of National City Comprehensive Anhual Financial Reports.
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Fiscal Year

2006 2007 2008
83,016 846 95,083,030 90,385,315
37.597 6533 4% 250,045 B3 081,051
(2.314,564) 5.449 989 7,376,407

129,190 885 141,783,056 150,853 673
10,654 822 10,407 472 5,584,797
2,134,043 1,778,624 1,986 801
12,088,855 12,186,006 7.581,558
104.771.638 105,490,611 85,980,112

39,751 878
(2,314,564)

43028672
5440 960

55,078,752
7376497

142,188,750

1653.888 152

158,435,471
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CUTY OF NATIONAL CITY

Changes in Néf Assets’

Last S Fiscal Yaars

faccrual Basis of accounting)

Expenses.

Governmental Activiiss:
General govenmeant
Puplic- saféty
Trarnsporiation
Community development
Heaalth
Culture and leisure
[rtarast on long-term debt (unaliocated)
Depreciation expanse (unallotaied)

Total governmental activiies expanses

Business-type Activities

TDA

Community development compiission
Total business-type activities expenses

Tatal primary government expenses

Program Revenue:
Governmant Activities:
Charges for servicas.
General government
Public.safety
Transportgion
Community development
Health
Cufture and leisure
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total governmental activities program revenue

Business-type Activilias,
Charges for services:
TA
Community development commission
Operaling grants and contributions
Capital grants and contribufions
Total businesse-type activiies program ravenue

Total primary government program revenue

Net Revenues (Expenses).
Governrental activilies
Business-type activities

Total Net Revenues (Expensesy

Naotes: * The City of National City implemented GASE 34 for the neriod ended June 30, 2003,

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 5005
1R2UBTTR 4,840,699 5,821 973
21, 707108 20,681,526 29 517,769
1 48h 506 3,416,685 5185480
7 845282 18,772,524 23,585 808
5583 202 8,776,503 6,776,548
4,054,931 5371 846 6,261,480
248,690 2,401,263 4,809,381
3,418,754 . .
80,386,247 81,023,426 81,938,435
3,003,738 3,037,348 3,166,807
1 618,507 {694,815 1.8168212
& BEDIANS 4732163 4,977 019
§5,008:582 55,665,589 86,855 458
831,483 8,638,252 14,796.243
2 159,250 1,204,738 552,384
44,074 1,550 )
1,111,861 902,358 ABT.B10
4,733,821 1,225 -
278130 637,165 555,500
12 565,340 21,815,547 30,438 839
3474002 136,297 185,889
25,280 005 33,427,193 43 931,765
1,29 0.576 1,391 281 1,170,795
1,805,538 1,810,435 1,843,918
1,352,068 1,365,549 1,307.972
- - 52,137
£ 359 180 4 506,265 4 374,822
20 5566, 185 37,833,458 a8 506 587

(35,007,242}
(253,155}

(28,496,233}
(225,898}

{38.008,674)
(5421973

{35,350387}

(28,722,131}

{38,548,871)

informalion prior o the implemantation i not avaiiable.

* The Mationa! City fransit operation (TDA) wds discontinued dusing fiscal vear 2007,

Source: City of National City Comprehansive Annual Financial Reports,
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Fiscal Year

2005 2007 2008
3,141,167 5219118 5,881,015
24,841,408 25,943 803 27,748,308
9,470,551 2,680,880 7,144,511
23,709,596 22,209 522 24,841,387
6,046 684 B27T3178 7 426,569
6,243,350 8,387,197 6,304,412
2,631,082 2,768,004 2,853,200
76505885 T 481,700 81,870,002
3,684,772 2,680,687 2.218 661
2.538 540 2.G59.738 2 078,822
5,220,312 4,749 425 4,297 483
87 815,195 76,231,175 85 067 485
11,754,680 11,210,231 3,035,893
182,214 74,987 192 201
557,718 TET BES 776,004
- - 7,426,730
850,428 843,275 938,297
27,308,278 23,018,167 26,090,615
243 582 185,994 112,107
40,673,688 36,079,210 38,569,027
1,287,218 891,045 .
1920403 1,855 520 2044277
2,002 041 990,340 .
5,200,662 3.836.873 2,044 277
45 BB5,650 39,016,083 40,613,304
(35,921.805) (35:402,490) (43,100,975)
(1,010,650 (912 B52) {2,253,208)
(35,000, 45 (36315 042) {45354, 181)
(Continuad)
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_ GIHY OF NATIONAL GITY
Chaniges in Net Assets (Continued) ' *°
Last'Six Fiscal Years
(accrual basls of accounting)

Fiscal Year
2003 2004 2008
General Revenue and Other Changes in Net Assets:
Governmental Activities:
Taves;
Property taxes 10,020,098 8,091,584 10,634,257
Sales taxes 14,746,115 16,458,677 18,723,850
Franchise taxes 1,267,983 1,369,136 1421404
Motor vehicle license 34473 938 2.950,348 4,488 802
Transient cccupancy taxes 959,078 927,873 1,002,664
Other taxes 922,906 44,082 -
Investment earnings 1,381 580 1,294 564 1,238.038
Other misc - 1,832,758 1,756 642
Rent 80,883 88 487 82,011
Transfers - - .
Total governmental activities 32,802 669 33,158 518 30,387 768
Rusiness-type Activities:
Invesiment earnings 27 9568 37,340 A2 850
Other misc - 9,884 -
Rent - - -
Transters - - -
Total busingss-type activities 27,958 47 024 42 850
Total primary govermnment 37 8530827 33202 542 30 430.6818
Changes in Net Assets: _
Govemmental activities {2284 573) 4,659,285 1,381,084
Blsiness-type activities {225,167 (178,874 (489,347
Total Primary Goverament {2819 770 4 480411 881,747

Notes; ' The City of National Clty implemented GASE 34 for the pedod ended June 30, 2003
information prior to the implemeniation is not available.
? The National City transit operation {TDA) was discontinued during fiscal year 2007,
* The City of National City implemented a one cent districttax during fiscal year 2007
causing ah incrgasein sales tax revenye and investmeant earnings.

Source: City of National City Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports.
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Fiscal Year

2008 2007 2008
13,304,818 15232910 16421 .961
17,571,328 22102515 221._(}7_2374:«3

1,357,256 1,440,770 1,416,236
4,558 078 4,837 B77 5100.388
HB18:378 G908, 187 841745
1,460,288 3,405,788 3,360,224
314,608 (27 7143 -
86711 85527 305,082
- . 2378510
30,265,481 AT 9RB.861 53908300
5%.7214 82.089 27818
34 853 . -
- 27714 .
- - (2,378 810}
G4 374 109,783 (2.3561.292)
39350835 48:005,444 51.5855.008
3,343,566 12,583,171 10,805,325
(91B.276) (802,76 (4,504:498)
2427 290 11,780 402 8.200.827

121



CITY OF NATIONAL CITY

Fund Balances of Government Funds’

{ast Six Fiscal Years

{modifled acorual basis of accounting)

Figeal Year
2003 2004 2005 2008
Genarat Fund:
Reservad 83.387 1,161,354 1,126,090 1,171,748
Unresarved 7 438565 8.056,9581 11457 153 11.620.584
Total general fund 7.522.962 9,158 335 12,583 243 12,792 332
All Cther Governmental Funds:
Reaserved 13,241,484 46 548, 352 10,445 936 21.678.313
Unraserved
Designated 27 833,768 14848 382 15,586,121 7 416 455
Undesignated:
Special revenue funds 8,553,893 3,714,764 13,350,731 17.348 1830
Capital projects funds 12,071,391 2.233.057 9,978,986 707 287
Debt service funds - - - -
Total alt other governmental funds 81,700,337 B7 445 585 58,372,774 53,546 895

Notes: ' The Cliy of National City has elected to show only six years of dafa for this schedule.

Sourge: City of National Gity Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports.
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Fiscal Year

2007 2008
1,501,213 1.727 692
15,585 066 18,208 540
17,086,275 20,028,232
26, 7H8 603 23,958,237
15554 052 10,832,288
15,595 483 23,384 266
4.201,534 8,750,823
51,108,542 67 835612
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CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
Changes in Fund Balantes of Government Funds™?

Last Six Fiscal Years

{modified acerual basis of accounting)

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and parmits
Fines and forfeitures
Interest-and rents
intergovernmental
Charges for services
Other revenues

Tatal revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Community development
Health
Culture and leisure.
Capital outlay
Debt service:
Principal
interast and fiscal charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures

Other Financing Sourcas (uses)
Froceeds from issuance of debt
Payrnent to bond escrow agent
Fraceedd from lease
Procasds from sale of land
Transfers in
Transfers cut

Total other financing
sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Debt gervices a8 a percentage of
noncapital expenditures

Fiscal Year

2003 2004 2005
§ 27753702 S 30511984 8 356831882
246 354 207 937 895 617
992,882 1,125,965 1,234,563
1,813,366 1.411,209 2,176,345
20,190,583 20,493,616 26,776,553
6.607,356 7,787 770 9,386,573
1,784,270 1.718.177 5,726,776
59,388 543 63,527 638 84,028 309
16,217,080 4,895,801 5,087,967
18,391,488 21,008.075 28,230,210
1,489,506 1,567,585 2,804 547
8,179.356 18,922,721 25,061,378
5 683,202 8,776,503 6,776.548
4,070,165 5,321,896 6.261.480
5,360,611 5,874,829 15,058,251
745,000 745 000 985,000
862 313 2,079,782 4,206,020
61,008,721 67,212,202 95,571,402
(1,710,178 (3.884,564) (11.843.09%
6,000,000 12,760,000 37,780,000
- - (37.111.533)
- 261,937 -
- 1,887 101 -
2,180,736 9.774.100 18,113,443
(2,249 687) (0.749.287) (16,433.443)
5,951,049 15,042,841 2,348,457
$ 4220871 8 11189277 $  (9.194.828)
2.90% 461% 6.45%

Notes: * The Gity of National City has elected to show only six years of data for this schedule.

? The Ciy of National City imiplamented a one cent district tax during fiscal year 2007
causing an increase in sales tax revenus and investment earmings.

Source: City of National City Comprehansive Annual Financial Reports,
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Fiscal Yaar

20086 2007 2008
39138480  $ 46477691  § 49.871 559
887,009 872,998 801,232
1,237,069 939,083 1,422,347
1,957,322 3,405,789 3,369,924
24,345,988 23,863,565 24377 473
9,330,082 9,328,340 8,471,286
2.662,154 2 358,768 2,680,389
75.558.104 87,248 234 90893510
5,305,508 4,723,185 5354513
25,784,443 25,130,868 26,528,987
3,369,380 3,236,793 3,756,298
23,315,799 20.092.576 23,721,153
6,049,680 6,273,178 7 426,569
€.243.390 6.987.197 8276850
10,957 507 2,074,818 1,636,398
3,224,395 2.871.863 2,801,709
3,014,431 2 898.062 2 864 935
87 354,637 74 589,440 80,457,369
(7.796.528) 12,656,794 10,438,141
458 994 - -
10,434,154 8 182,525 13,096,724
(7.931.954) (8,982,525)  (13,151.446)
2,658,994 (800:000) (54,722}
(4,837.534) $ 11856794 _§ 10381419
8.17% 7.96% 7.30%
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THE CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
NET TAXABLE ASSESSED VALUE HISTORY

{59899 - 2007108 Taxahle Property Values

| Lien Year Secured Unsecured  SBE Nonunitary NetTotal AV % Change |
1998/9% 51 408,968,721 $89 894,518 $14,081 186 $1,509,944 425
1999100 34,473 057556 580,605 455 §11,028:471 $1,584,751,482 4,96%
2000/01 §1,620,510,497 $100,802,500 $11.076,114 $4,632:589;111 3.00%
2001/02 $1.828,026.565 $103,166,141 S, 138470 $1,743,331,306 §.78%
2002/03 $1.717 468,753 $107.821 517 310,884,643 51,836,172,913 5.33%
2603/04 $1.817 088450 $119,327.813 $11,768 070 $1,948,164,113 $.10%
2004105 $1.935,780.448 171,108,202 36177518 $2,063,075,166 5.90%
2005166 $4.248, 203480 §132.407.244 56,064,199 $2,354,374,598 14.12%
2006107 $2.585 295,508 5106 ,024,998 $5.931 260 $2,697,18,763 14.56%
2067108 $2,764 040,632 $153.808 274 84,036,249 $2.921,888 455 8.33%

!
SBE Nonunitary 2 Unsecured Secured |2

$3,200,000,000

$7.300,000.000

$7,400,600.000

$2,000,000,000

$1.800:000,000 p7

$1 206,000,000
$800,000,600
$400. 000,000

50
190800 199900 200001 200402 200903 200304 200405 200506 200BK7 200708
Data Scurce: San DHego County Assassor 1898/48 - 200708 Cambired Tax Rofs Prepared On $/112008 By NEC

Thiz repost 5 not to B dsed it support of Gabl issuaned or comtinging disclostiie sfatements wilfroa! the wiltien consent of HdL, Coren & Cane
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THE CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
DIRECT & OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

{RATE PER $100 OF TAXABLE VALUE)

-Lasi 10 Fiscal Years: |

Agerncy ! 1968/09  $993/00  2000/01 2001/02 2002/83 2003/04 2004/05 2005/06. 2006/07 2007/08
Basic Lewy* 1.00000 100000 160600 100800 1.A6000 100040 100000 100000 100000 500000
Cwa Cily Of Mationa Gity - Dt Barvio GOCTOT QOG0 Q00087 (0008Y  C.O0D7S CODDGY 0. QE)@G” 000002 000000 OGOOD

Gan fond Chula [ 0000 D.0GH0 000000 G.00834 0.60344 G- G0Re% 000203 Q00177 GOGies

el na Chula Vista GOCH30  GOD0OGD 000600 B.OOC O00538 D O045G 0.00303 3 G241
Cer Sond Chula Vista PREFECH f1.60000 G.060000 {f DOOGOT £ G005 G030 0.00250
Gen Bond Chula VistaE Q.00000 DOODO0 GEDDODD O GDGQO 000000 G.00000 a7 i Q00320
Gen8ond ChulaVista £ BB 1.00000 800000 SR HETN 0.000000  BA0000 £.00000 000000 o DMD_&' (, 0353
Gen Bond Shula Vista Slam Hteiielay D0000G 042478 DOTE0E 001244 001D S.01004  GO0BAE GO05H 000002
Gen Bond Chula Vista Schw: 200UE GO00G0 000000 001009 CHOEEs  0.00547  0.00a40  0.00373 QODED0 D0OGOD
Gen Bong Chula Vistg School 2005 Ref SO0ROG  000nag 00000 . UGLLU BO00DO.  0.00BGC  GANGED GODOGG 00835 D.00VBO
ol Swsstwater TO00A G.00000  DOCDOG GA00RC G0EEET 002186 0.00847 QDG4 LOOB2S 006BWE §.0Dags
Hil Band Sweelwalss 20008 voboie 00008 000000 DOBOD DOO00G  0AM0DS DO0B04  DO0SZE  DO053T OD0B4S
HiBong Swse’w&!e; 20004 00000 CODODG  GOO000  GOODOG 000000 040000 O00DGG  BOUBOG GDOTEY  DODRY

High Schoof Bond Bweetwater, Prop @-Sedies 2007 0060 DOOODE Q00000 000000 DO00DD  GODOOD D.O000D.  CL0ODD  CLORDRG 00270
Lower Sweslwater Fire Frof D Tex: Rate Reduction DO000O.  AIBSER 000000 DOIBTO 200000 0.00G00 0.00000 0.00006 00500 0.00000
Mwd IVS Remsinder OF Sdowa 1504958 000890 oobssh  L.OGRBR0  DNUFTD 0O08TH  C.OORTD  0.0DGA0  00DEXD 000470 (.OO4ED
Mationat City Geri. Obligalion Bords 2002 Sefies 4 000000 DOBDOD 00000 D.OKOSY  0000DO 062275 0D2CO0 001VF0 episvh pO3430
San Diego Cominunity Colf Bond-Prop N Series 2006 000000 000000 000000 000000 L0000 D.0D000  Q.00000 000000 G00000 001868
San Diego Community Toltege Bond, 20034 LOCDO0  COGODG COQ0000  DO0GH0  GO0000  G.ODIFES 0.01961 001630 001272 0.00000
San Diegn Community College Bond 20038 GOGOOG  0.00B02  GO0000  BO00000 000000 000000 Go0ceq COOEEE 0080 GO0B74
San Diggo Unified Co School Bllg Fund DS GOGOOT  GODODS 000000 DODGG0.  0O00ODD  GODDOS  CODDDS  DOGORG  O00000  G.ODOGO
San Diego Unified LeaselPurchase D.OBETS  Q0PATS  D.OUSTS 9B9ETA 008575 O.0D00D  GODOOD  GOOODO 000000 000000
Southivestern Commuhity Colfege Bohd 2000 D000 E00000  GDEE0D  ODB44  00130e  DOOVET GO007ED DOCEST 00057 040448

Sguthwestem Ccza:mum'y Collsge Bond 200072004:  DUDORGT GO0000  -0B000GD  DO00OG0 000000 080000 4.00sm GOBOOG 000000 LOOGGD
Southwestem Community Colfege Bend Refund 2008 8.00000 000000 000000 000008 000000 000000 0.0G0DQ GOBE0E 000882 D.0075S

Unifled Bong Sar Diege 19988 0.00000-  GODGOC  GO0000  OI0BCOC  QUOB0DG 000000 SOOBOOD GOIEZRT 005781 D.00887
Unified Bond San Slege 15886 C.ooboo  DO0CODE  OREDOLD  0.00000 DODDGE.  GODODD Q.00DED 000000 Q01408 (.DD260

Unifigd Bond San Dieg
Linified Bond San

6.00000 0:00000 £.09000 Q00000 000003 0.OTED D.O0Esa 0008 G007Es 000748
LOGOOO Q00000 000000 ¢DO000 00000L B0Z244 00302 Q.0078% Q00887 GO0S6T
Unifist Boand San 00000 200000 G0GO00 DO0600 GO00LD GURFTS DO1EZS 0.00899 000763 0048
Uritiad flond San 0.000009 D000 200000 0.00000 B.O6000 0.03057 Q02263 Q1272 .008865 na0acs
Unified Bor San Di ec*o 20038 000000 000000 Q00000 GOOC0T OO000RD C.00D0D DORTAR 042138 401733 (01429
Unified Bend San Mega 2008 Series F-1 Refunding 0.06000 000000 000000 CO0GH0D 000000 00000 000000 COODDG  D.OOBDG 000870
tndfled Dohd San Diego 2008 Sories G-1 Rcvundmg 000000 000000 400000 LOOGOO G00000- 000004 000000 CO00D0G S0AG00  DO0S5EE

Total Ditect 8 Overtapping Tax Rates 140513 0.84481 L3081 100194 1918485 449718 448087 1A88TD 147054 118820

City's Share of 1% Levy Per Prop 13 GITERO 017728 2770 GA7Y20 HATERG 317780 GAFeh 017780 Q17720

General Obiligation Debt Rate mE2drs 002000 Q00 001870 0.01430

Redevelopment Rafe™ 1.00687  1.00BRCG 100671 100883 100745 1.008FF  1LOUB80 100520 100470 100480

Tatal Direct Rate”® GATIEG  D4RITH 048345 0.4881%  0S1257 D AIB4E DSA468  0BOERY  OEVEEZ  D.ARYER
Notes
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aeea (TRAar
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glindesanly mbe{sifom i ¢4 198 per Talfirnia Bate staiuie. RDA diect and wval

Tatal Bisel Rate i the w\,sghzﬁd avamge‘ ofpll gt dirgat vatag disnliad by i GevelTimiEnt prepadng e statisheal sectian Bfbmaion

Oater Boaree: Jan Dingo.County Assessor 1008/99 < 200768 Tax Ratg Tabie Frepared On §1/2008 By NEC
Thisrmpod & notto be useilin supportof defit lvsvance. or continuing disctosare statomaents vt thesedfien sonsent of Ml Coren & Sone
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THE CITY OF NATIONAL CITY
PROPERTY TAX DOLLAR BREAKDOWN

/

—~t—  $0.280  Navonal Chty Generat Blementary

Cemdees $0177  Sweetwater Dinion High

S0.14%  County General

£0.13%  Fducational Revenue Augmentation Fud

SO048  Southwestern Community College

# $4.0071
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P 30,0030
- R HO020
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$ 00015
S A1 IR
- 00004
SRR U144 1
- S .000]
- S 0.0000

deniat Cenfers
jomal Cin
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AT Avaual Tax Inerement) Ratios For Tax Rate Area §06-000, Exciuding Redevelopment Factors & Additional Debt Servive
Sowurcer Hdl Coren & Cope, Savt Dicgo County Assessor 007708 Annaal Tax Tnerement Tubles Nokputiosnd Page !

Thiy repore iy gor o be wsed in suppert of debt issuanceor contlndng disclisre seatements withant the written consentof B, Coren & Cone
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CITY OVERVIEW
PLANNING DEPARTMENT

July, 2008
Date of Incorporation:  Seplember 17, 1887
Population: 61,115

Arvear 9.7 sguare miles
{(Land Area: 7.3 square miles)

Location
National City is Jocated 3 mites south of downtown San Diego. on San Briego Bay in
southern San Diego County. and 10 miles north of Baja California, Mexice. The Ciy s
hordered by San Diego (o the north and cast, Chula Vista to the south, the unincorporated
areas of Lincolt Acres and Bonita (o the south and southeast, and San Diego Bay to the
west,

The City is centrally located, within 20 minates travel time of over 1.4 million people.
This accessibility is comparablg to Dawntown San Diego’s. (SANDAG 2007 papelation
estimate)

Transportation Facilities and Services

Interstate Freeways: I-5 and 1-803 c¢ross the City from north o south, and State
Route 54 traverses the southern edge of town.

Port and Rail Facilities; National City Marine Terminal - San Diego Uniffed Port Disirict
Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad
San Diego-& Arizona bBastern Railway

Public Transit: Metropolitan Transit System (bus service through the City and

adincent areas)
San DHego Trolley — two stations
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Land Use and Development Pattern

National City 8 nearly entively developed with a mix of residential neighborhoods and
industrial and commercial uses.  Port facifities and adjacent indusirial developments
focated at the City's bayiront are tmportant (o the region’s economy, The "Mile of Cars”
provides a specialized, regional use with easy aceess from Inmerstate 5 and the South Bay
Fregway fRoute 343, At the other end ol the Cily is Plaza Bonita, the largest retail center
in the'South Bay.

The following are estimates of land use argas within the City. Perceatages are based on
et aoreage, excluding sireets, highways and other tranisportation facilities:

Land Use % of Land Area
Residential 4194
fndastiial 139
Comvergial 1 2%

Mavy Lands 1094
Institutional 8%
Parks & Recreation 4%

Salt Plas 6%
Vacant 6%

The City is over one hundred vears old, However. most of'it was built between 1940 and
1970, This is reflected by its population. growth and the age of its housing.

National City Historic Population Bata
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Housing by Year Built (2000 Census)
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Total Housing Units: 15,721

Y% vacant: 2.61 9 {2008

Average Household Sizes 346 persons (2008)
I{(iuseho_td Population: 53._.(340 (2008}
Group Quarters Population: 8. 154.(2008)

WRE R 1940 T UEATR  THS0 T 198G (860 T LEER TOT0 T THTE

(2008 State Dept. of Finance)

LERE Ty 14RO (a6 1

Group quarters population is mestly those onboard military ships and also includes

persons in residential care faciliies or convalescent homes.

Owner Gecupied Housing:  33%
Renter Oceupied Housing: 63%
{Sandag 2004)
Median Household Encome {(Sandagz 20067 $44.130
Median Resale Home Prices
2007 2062 20060

Single-Family Homes: S398.000 $218.0000 $155.000
Condominiums: 349,500 F161.,0040 $107.000

Average Apartment Rents

Linit Type Studio | Bedreom | 2 Bedroom 3+ Bedroom
Average Monthly Rent $515 $321 L5630 $1081

Seurce: San Pege County' Apartment Association (Spring 2003}
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Race and Ethnieity

2007 2000 1990 1980

4 9 O # %%
Hispanic 36,173 399 | 320053 39.0% | 26914 49.6% | 18,708 38.4%
White 4,573 16% 1 7.653 F1% 114,080 26.0% | 19680 40.4%
Asian & Pacific tslander | 10,666 179% | 1,351 1949 | 8.900 10.6% | 6,146 12.6%
Black 3417 6% 2.823 3,255 4,265 7.9% 4,238 B.7%
Two or More Raceés® 1286 29% 1,180 2.2%% n/a 0/ /8 nia
Total 61,115 100% | 54,260 100% | 54249  100% | 48,772  100%

Source: Census (198026003, Sandag (2007)

Age of National City Residents

2007 patIHY 1994 1980
# Fo # %o i %o # %
under § 5176 3% 4,410 8% 4,850 9% 4914 Y%
3-14 8570 1484 9482 F7% 8,043 15%; 6,902 13%
15-24 13379 25% 10,063 19%, 12,444 23% 13,696 25%,
25-34 9391 15% 8115 1 5% 10,572 199 8,842 16%%
35-54 13006 2% 13,023 24% 9,865 8% 7368 14%;,
55-64 3771 5% 3,176 5% 3.372 6% 3,169 6%
65-74 2750 3% 3,242 6% 2945 3% 2,251 4%
75+ 3072 2% 2,747 %% 2,106 4% 1630 3%
Total e P00% | 34260 100% | 54249 [00% | 48772 HO0%%
Median Age 26.4 28.7 26.3 24.3

Source: Census (1980-2000), Sandag (2007)
Property Valuation (FY 2007-2008 San Diego Countly Assessor)
Total Assessed Property Value:  $2.833,664,364
Number of Assessed Parcels: 8411

Taxable Sales 2006: SESTG,266.900 (State Board of Equalization)

$1.600,000,000 -

$1.400.600.000
§1,200, 600,000

1,000,006 008 it

$BOU 00,000 -

600000000 +
S400.000.009

700,000 000 1E
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City Emplovevent (Sandag 2004)

Crviliang 20,542
Military: 7213
Totak: 27,755

Major Employers in National City

s+ Emplovees

Naval Station San Disgo Harber Dirive
Paradise Valley Hospital 2400 . 4th Street
National School District 10 schools and District offices

250-499 Emplovees

Sweetwater Unifen High School Distriet 4 schools

City of National City 1243 National City Bouwlevard

Macy's 3000 Plara Bondta Road

Mossy Nissan. 2700 National City Boulevard

Dixieling Lumber, Truss Yard & Home Center 1400 W 287, 2740 Tidelands & 3450
Highland

160-249 Emplovees
{listed by address)

Friendship Developmental Services 2300 1. ?Lh Sireet

Paradise Valley Manor & Health Care Center 2575 1, 8" Street

Windsor Gardens Convaléseent 220 B 24th S ireet

Power Generation Consulting 221 33" Street

Pasha Services 1309 Bay Marina Drive
Knight & Carver Yacht Center 1313 Bay Marina Drive
Motivational Svstems, Inc. 2200 Clevealand Avenue
Friendship Manor 902 5. Buclid Avenue

Pacific Defense Systems 1428 MeKinley Averue
Holiday Inn 708 National City Boulevard
frank Toyota 2400 National City Boulevard
Perry Ford of Natdonal Gity 2056 National City Boulevard
Ron Baker Chevrolet 2301 National City Boulevard
MeCupe Chrvsler Plymouth 2340 National Cily Boulevard
San [Hego Dodge 2829 National City Boulevard
Westcott Mazda Kia 28500 National City Boulevard
Ball Automaotive Group 1935 Nattonal City Boulevard
Meryyn's Department Stove 2007 Highland Avenue

J. C. Penney Company, Inc. 3040 Plaza Bonita Road
Castls Manor Convaieseent Center 541V Avenue

Py Adutiigju 41 Hi2ih St

Manillow Money Exchange 1478 1 Fighland Avenue
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Police
Statio
Zone

Fire stations

Cther public

ns
offices

WOrks

Streets (miles}
Highways {milesy
Streetights
Traffic signals

Parks and recreation

Acrea

ge

Playgrounds

Baseball/softball diamonds
Soccerffoctball fields

Community centers

Source: City of National Gity'

Notes: '

a

City of National Gity
Capital Assets by Function |
Last 8iX Galander Years

2003 2004 2005 2008 2007 2008
1 % 1 1 1 1
f 3 O 0 0 9
2 2 2 2z 2 2
nfa /s nifa a O nia
8 6 8 5 6 8
i n'a ila nta 1673 nla
89 8% 89 29 89 89
54 84 84 84 84 84
4 4 4 4 4 4
7 7 7 7 7 7
3 3 3 3 3 3
h 5 5 5 8 5

Tha Gity of National City has slected 10 show only six yvears of data for this scheduls,

Nol Available
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